
           
 

AGENDA
ESCAMBIA COUNTY PLANNING BOARD

July 6, 2020–8:35 a.m.
Escambia County Central Office Complex

3363 West Park Place, Room 104
             
1. Call to Order.  
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.  
 

3. Proof of Publication and Waive the Reading of the Legal Advertisement.   
 

4. Approval of Minutes.  
 

A.   A. RECOMMENDATION: That the Planning Board review and approve the
Meeting Resume' Minutes of the June 1, 2020, Planning Board Meeting.

B. Planning Board Monthly Action Follow-up Report for June 2020.

C. Planning Board 6-Month Outlook for July 2020.
 

5. Acceptance of Planning Board Meeting Packet.  
 

6. Public Hearings.  
 

A.    A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending the
Future Land Use Map - SSA-2020-02

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County
Commissioners (BCC) for adoption, an Ordinance amending the Future Land
Use (FLU) Map for a Small Scale Amendment, SSA-2020-02

 

B.   A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending the
Future Land Use Map; SSA-2020-03

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County
Commissioners (BCC) for action, an ordinance amending the Future Land
Use Map (FLUM) of the Comprehensive Plan by Small-Scale Amendment
SSA-2020-03.



 

C.   A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending Chapter
7, Policy FLU 1.1.1 and FLU 5.1 to Provide for an Amendment to the 2030
Future Land Use Map named LSA-2020-02

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County
Commissioners (BCC) for transmittal to DEO, an Ordinance amending the
Comprehensive Plan, Chapter 7, 2030 FLU map, for the specific parcel
25-2S-31-1303-000-000, requesting to change the existing FLUM
designation from Commercial (C) to Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U) of 88.24 (+/-)
acres.

 

D.   A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending
Chapter 6, Definitions, Section 6-0.3 Terms Defined

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County
Commissioners (BCC) for adoption, an Ordinance to the Land Development
Code (LDC) amending the following section to change the effective date for
a lot of record from February 8, 1996 to April 16, 2015: Chapter 6,
Definitions, Section 6-0.3 Terms Defined.

 

7. Action/Discussion/Info Items.  
 

A.   Recommendation Concerning the Review of the Comprehensive Plan
Annual Report 2018/2019

That the Board review and recommend approval to the Board of County
Commissioners (BCC) the 2018/2019 Comprehensive Plan Annual Report.

 

B.   RVs Allowed for Living in District 5 Where Mobile Homes are
Allowed Discussion.

 

C.   Tiny Homes Discussion.
 

8. Public Forum.  
 

9. Director's Review.  
 

10. County Attorney's Report.  
 

11. Scheduling of Future Meetings.  
 



 

The next Regular Planning Board meeting is scheduled for Tuesday,
August 4, 2020 at 8:30 a.m., in the Escambia County Central Office
Complex, Room 104, First Floor, 3363 West Park Place, Pensacola, Florida.

 

 

12. Announcements/Communications.  
 

13. Adjournment.  
 



   
Planning Board-Regular   4. A.           
Meeting Date: 07/06/2020  

Agenda Item:
A. RECOMMENDATION: That the Planning Board review and approve the
Meeting Resume' Minutes of the June 1, 2020, Planning Board Meeting.

B. Planning Board Monthly Action Follow-up Report for June 2020.

C. Planning Board 6-Month Outlook for July 2020.

Attachments
Draft June 1, 2020 Regular Planning Board Meeting Minutes
Monthly Action Follow-Up
Six Month Outlook



D R A F T
MINUTES OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY PLANNING BOARD

 June 1, 2020

CENTRAL OFFICE COMPLEX
3363 WEST PARK PLACE, BOARD CHAMBERS

PENSACOLA, FLORIDA
(9:31 A.M. – 11:51 A.M.)

Present: Reid Rushing   
  Jay Ingwell   
  Wayne Briske, Chairman   
  Patty Hightower   
  Eric Fears   
  Gary Sammons   
  Walker Wilson   
  Stephen Opalenik   
Absent: Timothy Pyle
Staff Present: Allyson Lindsay, Urban Planner II

Andrew Holmer, Division Manager, Planning & Zoning
Horace Jones, Director, Development Services
Juan Lemos, Senior Planner, Planning & Zoning
Kayla Meador, Administrative Supervisor
Kia Johnson, Assistant County Attorney
Kim Wilson, Urban Planner I

 

 

               

1.  Call to Order.
 

2.  Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.
 

3.  Proof of Publication and Waive the Reading of the Legal Advertisement. 
 
  Motion by Reid Rushing, Seconded by Walker Wilson 

Motion was made to waive the reading of the legal advertisement. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Timothy Pyle (ABSENT) 
 

4.  Approval of Minutes.
 

  



A.     A. RECOMMENDATION: That the Planning Board review and approve the
Meeting Resume' Minutes of the March 3, 2020 Planning Board Meeting.

B. Planning Board Monthly Action Follow-up Report for May 2020.

C. Planning Board 6-Month Outlook for June 2020.

  

 
  Motion by Reid Rushing, Seconded by Eric Fears 

Motion was made to approve the minutes from the March 3, 2020 Planning
Board meeting. 

  Vote: 6 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Timothy Pyle (ABSENT) 
 

5.  Acceptance of Planning Board Meeting Packet.
 
  Motion by Gary Sammons, Seconded by Jay Ingwell 

Motion was made to accept the meeting package. 
  Vote: 6 - 0 Approved
 

Other: Timothy Pyle (ABSENT) 
 

6.  Public Hearings.
 

A.      A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending the Future
Land Use Map - SSA-2020-01

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County Commissioners
(BCC) for adoption, an Ordinance amending the Future Land Use (FLU) Map for a
Small Scale Amendment, SSA-2020-01

  

 
  Motion by Reid Rushing, Seconded by Eric Fears 

Motion was made to recommend approval to the BCC. 
  Vote: 5 - 1 Approved
 

Voted No: Jay Ingwell 
Other: Timothy Pyle (ABSENT) 

 

7.  Action/Discussion/Info Items.
 

A.     Lot of Record Date Change Discussion.   

 

B.     RVs Allowed for Living in District 5 where Mobile Homes are Allowed Discussion.   

 

C.     Tiny Homes Discussion.   

 

8.  Public Forum.



8.  Public Forum.
 

9.  Director's Review.
 

10.  County Attorney's Report.
 

11.  Scheduling of Future Meetings.
 

 The next Regular Planning Board meeting is scheduled for Monday, July 6, 2020
at 8:30 a.m., in the Escambia County Central Office Complex, Room 104, First
Floor, 3363 West Park Place, Pensacola, Florida.

 

12.  Announcements/Communications.
 

13.  Adjournment.
 



1 
 

Memorandum 
 
TO:  Planning Board 
 
FROM: Kayla Meador, Board Clerk 
 
DATE:  June 26, 2020 
 
RE:  Monthly Action Follow-Up Report for June 2020 
 
The following is a status report of Planning Board (PB) agenda items for the prior month of June. 
Some items include information from previous months in cases where final disposition has not yet 
been determined. Post-monthly actions are included (when known) as of report preparation date. 
Items are listed in chronological order, beginning with the PB initial hearing on the topic. 
 
PROJECTS, PLANS, & PROGRAMS 
 
 
COMMITTEES & WORKING GROUP MEETINGS 
 
 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENTS 
  
• Text Amendments: 
• Map Amendments: 

 
LSA-2019-05 FLU change from C to MU-U 

12-03-19 PB recommended approval 
01-07-20 BCC dropped case 
04-02-20 BCC postponed 
06-18-20 BCC meeting (pulled by applicant) 
07-16-20 BCC meeting 

 
OSP-2019-02 

02-04-20 PB meeting – was not heard 
03-03-20 PB meeting 
03-05-20 BCC transmitted to DEO 
06-04-20 BCC approved 

 
 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT 
3363 WEST PARK PLACE 

PENSACOLA, FLORIDA 32505 
PHONE: 850-595-3475 

FAX: 850-595-3481 
www.myescambia.com 



2 
 

OSP-2019-03 
02-04-20 PB meeting – was not heard 
03-03-20 PB meeting 
03-05-20 BCC transmitted to DEO 
06-04-20 BCC approved 

 
OSP-2019-04 

02-04-20 PB meeting – was not heard 
03-03-20 PB meeting 
03-05-20 BCC transmitted to DEO 
06-04-20 BCC approved 
 

LSA-2020-01 
02-04-20 PB meeting – was not heard 
03-03-20 PB meeting 
03-05-20 BCC transmitted to DEO 
06-18-20 BCC approved 
 

SSA-2020-01 
06-01-20 PB recommended approval 
07-02-20 BCC meeting 
 

 
LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE ORDINANCES 
 
 
REZONING CASES  

 
1. Rezoning Case Z-2020-03 

06-01-20 PB recommended approval 
07-02-20 BCC meeting 
 

2. Rezoning Case Z-2020-04 
06-01-20 PB meeting – applicant requested continuance 
 



PLANNING BOARD MONTHLY SCHEDULE 
SIX MONTH OUTLOOK FOR JULY 2020 

(Revised 6/26/20)  
 

A.H. = Adoption Hearing T.H. = Transmittal Hearing P.H. = Public Hearing 
* Indicates topic/date is estimated—subject to staff availability for project completion and/or citizen liaison  

 

Meeting Date 
 

LDC Changes and/or 
Public Hearings 

Comprehensive 
Plan 

Amendments 
Rezoning 

Reports, 
Discussion and/or 

Action Items 

Monday, July 6, 2020 • Changing LOR Date • SSA-2020-02 
• SSA-2020-03 

• Z-2020-05 
• Z-2020-06 

• Comp Plan Annual 
Report 

• RVs in D5 
• Tiny Homes 

Tuesday, August 4, 2020 • Rec. Vehicles Ord    

Tuesday, September 1, 2020     

Tuesday, October 6, 2020     

Tuesday, November 2, 2020     

Tuesday, December 1, 2020     

 
Disclaimer: This document is provided for informational purposes only. Schedule is subject to change. Verify all topics on the current meeting 
agenda one week prior to the meeting date. 



   
Planning Board-Regular   6. A.           
Meeting Date: 07/06/2020  
Issue: A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending the

Future Land Use Map - SSA-2020-02
From: HORACE JONES, Director 
Organization: Development Services

RECOMMENDATION:
 A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending the Future Land Use Map
- SSA-2020-02

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County Commissioners (BCC) for
adoption, an Ordinance amending the Future Land Use (FLU) Map for a Small Scale
Amendment, SSA-2020-02

BACKGROUND:
The small-scale amendment to the future land use (FLU) map of the County proposes to
change the FLU category of a parcel on a 7.5  (+/-) acres from commercial (C) to
Mixed-Use Suburban.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
No budgetary impact is anticipated by the adoption of this Ordinance.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The attached Ordinance has been reviewed and approved for legal sufficiency by Kia
Johnson, Assistant County Attorney. Any recommended legal comments are attached
herein.

PERSONNEL:
No additional personnel are required for implementation of this Ordinance.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
The proposed Ordinance is consistent with the Board’s goal “to increase citizen
involvement in, access to, and approval of, County government activities.”

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
This Ordinance amending the FLUM of the Comprehensive Plan will be filed with the



This Ordinance amending the FLUM of the Comprehensive Plan will be filed with the
Department of State following adoption by the BCC. Implementation of this Ordinance
will consist of an amendment to the FLUM and distribution of a copy of the adopted
Ordinance to staff and interested citizens. The proposed Ordinance was prepared by the
Development Services Department, in cooperation with the County Attorney’s Office and
all interested citizens. The Development Services Department will ensure proper
advertisement.

Attachments
Working Case File
Staff Analysis
Draft Ordinance



SSA-2020-02 



LILLIAN HW Y

W AVERY
ST

BR
UC

E S
T

N NEW

WARRINGTON RD

NEW
WARRINGTON

SPUR

VASSAR D R

RUBY
AVE

W FAIRFIELD DR

DE LUNA DR

W FAIRFIELD DR

LY
NC

H
STMARTHA

AVE

W FAIRFI EL
D

DR

N
50

T H
AVE

N
48

TH
A V

E

HO
LL

YW
OO

D 
AV

E

N
4 9TH

AVE

BO
RD

ER
 ST

COM
ANCHE

TR L

EM
ER

AL
D 

AV
E

DOGW

OOD
PL

PEN CT

GILBERT
CIR

N
OL

D
CO

RR
Y

FI
EL

D
RD

N 
50

TH
 A

VE

GAIL DR

HAVEN
CT

GAR F IELD DR

VIADUCTLN

N
GREEN

ST

N
46

TH
AV

E

PAU L ST
PEN HAVEN DR

FO
UNTAIN

AB BEY

FELDOR
DR

WABASH AVE
NEW YORK DR

CI
TR

US
 ST

GL
EN

W
O O

D
AV

E

W BLOUNT STN
49

TH
A V

E

KENTUCKY
DR

HUNTINGTON DR

ANTHONYST
NO

RT
HV

IEW
DR

EM ORY DR

VANDERBILT
RD

W LEE ST

MIS
SIS

SIPPI
CIR

EDI S O N DR
AP

AC
HE

TR
L

CAREY
AVE

W LLOYD
ST

GEORGIA DR

O S A GE TRL

JAMES ST

QUEENS CT

W CERVANTES ST

BA
NC

RO
FT

DR

N 52ND AVE

HO
LL

YW
OO

D 
AV

E

W BOBE ST

YORKSHIRE
AVE

KINNEAR AVE

OA
KW

OO
D

AV
E

CHEROK EE TRL

ADKINSO
N

DR

TALLADEGA
TRL

TO P AZ AVE

NOTTIN G HA
M

W AY

STATE ST

N
48

TH
AV

E

L ILLIAN HWY

TULIP
DR

N ORW OOD DR

N
EW

MEXICO
DR

SOUTH
DAKOTA ST

FE
RN

W
OO

D
AV

E

LI
ME ST

KE
AR

NY
DR

MARTHA
AVE

ELSA AVE

MOBILE

HWY

N
NE

W
W

AR
RI

NG
TO

N
RD

WYOMING ST
TENNESSEE DR

HA

LE

ST

BONIFAY PL

DO
MI

N G
UE

Z
ST

EATON RD

SEMINOLE
TRL

IVY LN
MOBILE HWY

BENTON RD

NE
W

WARRINGTON

SPUR

COLBY
LN

FLAXMAN
ST

W GADSDEN ST

W FAIRFIELD
DR

TO
MA

HA
WK

TR
L

TULIP DR

LILLIAN
HW Y

DOGW OOD DRST
ET

SON

RD

TONAW ANDA DR

W
IL

L
SH

IV
ER

 LN

MOBILEHW Y

A LICE ST

STATE ST
W THERE SAST

EMORY DR
BE

RT
RA

MST

WEBB LN

AQUAMARI NE
AV

E

MARTHAAVE

GOLDS BY AVE

ALAN A
DALE

MOHAWK
TRL

SIOUX TRL

OP
AL

AV
E

N 52ND AVE

BESMA DR

S MADISON DR

NE
W

WAR RI
NG

TO
N

S PU
R

S T REG IS DR

RANDOLPH DR

W

ESTOV

E R AV E

PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 1,000 2,000 3,000

Ft

SSA-2020-02
LOCATION MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



W FAIRFIELD DR
HDMU

Com

Com

Com

HDMU

MDR

HC/LI

Com

MDR

MDR

HC/LI Com

NEW
WARRINGTON SPUR NEW

WARRINGTON SPUR

EMORY DR

PENCT

PEN HAVEN DR

VANDERBILT
RD

NORW OOD DR

W FAIRFIELD DR

NE
W

W
AR

RI
NG

TON
SP

UR

MOBILE HWY

ST
ETSON RD

NEW W ARRI NG TON
S PUR

RANDOLPH DR

W
ESTOVER

AV E

W
ES

TO
VER AVE

VALI ANT
AVE

NEW
WAR

RI
NG

TO
N SPUR

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 300 600 900

Ft

SSA-2020-02
500' RADIUS ZONING

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



W FAIRFIELD DRMU-S
C

C

C

C

C

C

MU-S

MU-U

MU-S

C

NEW
WARRINGTON SPUR NEW

WARRINGTON SPUR

EMORY DR

PENCT

PEN HAVEN DR

VANDERBILT
RD

NORW OOD DR

W FAIRFIELD DR

NE
W

W
AR

RI
NG

TON
SP

UR

MOBILE HWY

ST
ETSON RD

NEW W ARRI NG TON
S PUR

RANDOLPH DR

W
ESTOVER

AV E

W
ES

TO
VER AVE

VALI ANT
AVE

NEW
WAR

RI
NG

TO
N SPUR

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 300 600 900

Ft

SSA-2020-02
EXISTING FLU

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



W FAIRFIELD DRMU-S
C

C

C

CMU-S

MU-U

MU-S

C

MU-S

MU-S

NEW
WARRINGTON SPUR NEW

WARRINGTON SPUR

EMORY DR

PENCT

PEN HAVEN DR

VANDERBILT
RD

NORW OOD DR

W FAIRFIELD DR

NE
W

W
AR

RI
NG

TON
SP

UR

MOBILE HWY

ST
ETSON RD

NEW W ARRI NG TON
S PUR

RANDOLPH DR

W
ESTOVER

AV E

W
ES

TO
VER AVE

VALI ANT
AVE

NEW
WAR

RI
NG

TO
N SPUR

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 300 600 900

Ft

SSA-2020-02
PROPOSED FLU

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



W FAIRFIELD DR

NEW
WARRINGTON SPUR NEW

WARRINGTON SPUR

EMORY DR

PENCT

PEN HAVEN DR

VANDERBILT
RD

NORW OOD DR

W FAIRFIELD DR

NE
W

W
AR

RI
NG

TON
SP

UR

MOBILE HWY

ST
ETSON RD

NEW W ARRI NG TON
S PUR

RANDOLPH DR

W
ESTOVER

AV E

W
ES

TO
VER AVE

VALI ANT
AVE

NEW
WAR

RI
NG

TO
N SPUR

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 300 600 900

Ft

SSA-2020-02
EXISTING LAND USE

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer

COM COM

COM

COM

COMCOM
COM

COM

COM

COM

COM

MOTEL

SF SF SF SF SF SF SF SF 

SF 

SF 

SF 
SF 

SF 
SF 

SF 

SF 

COM

SF SF SF SF SF 

SF 

SF SF 
SF SF 

SF 

SF 

SF 

SF 

SF

SF

SF

SF

SF



W ESTOVER AVE

MOBILE

HWY

NEW
WARRINGTON SPUR

NEW
WARRINGTON SPUR

MOBILE HWY

PEN HAVEN DR
NO

RW
OO

D
DR

MOBILE HWY

RANDOLPH DR

NEW W ARRINGTON SPUR

NE
W

WARRINGTON
SP

UR

W ESTOVER AVE

FDOT

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 200 400 600

Ft

SSA-2020-02
AERIAL MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



Public hearing sign



Looking west into 
the subject parcel



Looking toward 
Mobile Hwy from 
subject property



Looking along 
Westover drive 
from front of 

subject property



Looking north at curve 
along the backside of 

parcel



Looking west toward 
smaller parcel  



Looking northeast into 
subject parcel, showing 
affordable housing and 

back of commercial 
development



Another view of the 
smaller parcel across 

Westover St



































StrucUsel 

Community center (e.g., recreation hall) 

laundry 

Warehouse 

Military 

Military 

Military 

Office building 

Private residence 

Private residence 

Private residence 

Private residence 

Private residence 

Private residence 

Private residence 

Private residence 

StrucUse2 

Abandoned or vacant 

Abandoned or vacant 

Abandoned or vacant 

Abandoned or vacant 

Abandoned or vacant 

Abandoned or vacant 

SurvEval 

Ineligible for NRHP 

Ineligible for NRHP 

Ineligible for NRHP 

Ineligible for NRHP 

Ineligible for NRHP 

Ineligible for NRHP 

Ineligible for NRHP 

Ineligible for NRHP 

Ineligible for NRHP 

Ineligible for NRHP 

Ineligible for NRHP 

Ineligible for NRHP 

Ineligible for NRHP 

Insufficient Information 

Ineligible for NRHP 





















SSA-2020-02    Westover St. 
 

Page 1 of 6  

Comprehensive Plan 
Small-Scale Future Land Use Map Amendment 

Staff Analysis 

General Data 

Project Name:  SSA-2020-02 
Location:  Westover Street 
Parcel #:  34-2S-30-0061-000-002 
Acreage:  7.5 acres± 

FLU Request:  From Commercial (C) to Mixed-Use Suburban (MU-S) 
Applicant: Dave Hemphill, KG Development, Agent for Area Housing 

Commission, Owner 
Meeting Dates:  Planning Board, July 6, 2020 

 BCC, August 6, 2020 

Summary of Proposed Amendment: 
The small-scale amendment to the future land use (FLU) map of Escambia County 
proposes to change the FLU category of a vacant 7.5 (+/-) acre parcel from Commercial 
(C) to Mixed-Use Suburban (MU-S).  The property is a split zoned parcel of commercial 
and HDMU and is divided by a local road, Westover Street. 
A FLU change to MU-S will allow residential development within the existing commercial 
zoning district regardless of a primary commercial component as currently required by 
the existing Commercial FLU.  Both the future land use categories are described in 
Comprehensive Plan Policy FLU 1.3.1 and summarized as follows: 

Commercial.  “Intended for professional office, retail, wholesale, service and general 
business trade.  Residential development may be permitted only if secondary to a 
primary commercial development.”  The range of allowable uses is “residential, retail 
and services, professional office, light industrial, recreational facilities, public and 
civic.”  The FLU has a maximum residential density of 25 du/acre and a maximum 
floor area ratio (FAR) of 1.0. 
Mixed-Use Suburban.  “Intended for an intense mix of residential and non-
residential uses while promoting compatible infill development and the separation 
of urban and suburban land uses.”  The range of allowable uses is “residential, 
retail and services, professional office, recreational facilities, public and civic, 
limited agriculture.”  The FLU has a maximum residential density of 25 du/acre and 
a maximum floor area ratio (FAR) of 1.0. 

Land Development Code FLU map amendment requirements 



SSA-2020-02    Westover St. 
 

Page 2 of 6  

Sec. 2-7.3 (e) Comprehensive Plan map amendments 
(3) Compliance review.   

a. General amendment conditions.  All amendments to the Comprehensive Plan 
shall demonstrate the following general conditions, allowing that where an 
amendment is imposed by a state or federal requirement it need only 
demonstrate the conditions to the greatest extent practicable under that 
requirement: 
1. Need and benefit.  There is an identified land use need particular to the 

scope and function of the Comprehensive Plan for which an amendment is 
clearly warranted. 
Analysis: 
The provision of affordable housing is consistent with Comprehensive Plan 
objective OBJ HOU 1.2, Affordable Housing, to “assure the provision of safe, 
sanitary and affordable housing for moderate, low, and very low-income 
residents.”  Affordable housing is defined as “housing with costs, including 
monthly rents or mortgage payments, taxes, insurance, and utilities, not 
exceeding 30 percent of the median adjusted gross annual income for the 
households [defined] in Florida Statutes as amended.” 
The requested FLU change would remove the Commercial FLU-based 
restriction on the subject parcel that allows residential development only when 
secondary to commercial development. 
Although county housing officials confirm there is a county-wide shortage of 
below market rate or subsidized residential development, the application did 
not appear to reference any specific definition or need of affordable housing.   

2. Professional practices.  The proposed amendment applies contemporary 
planning principles, engineering standards, and other professional practices 
to provide an effective and efficient remedy for the identified land use problem 
or need. 
Analysis:  Accepting affordable housing as the identified need, the 
amendment proposes a replacement FLU that most easily maximizes the 
residential density of the existing Com and HDMU zoning at 25 du/acre while 
remaining consistent with surrounding property.  The proposed change to 
MU-S would be compatible to the existing affordable housing development on 
the residential to the west and south. 
Although the parcel’s Com zoning is shared with most surrounding parcels, 
the proposed land use change to mixed use suburban for a multi-family 
residential use would generally be in keeping with the MU-S to the west of the 
area. 

b. FLUM amendment conditions.  In addition to the general amendment 
conditions, a future land use map amendment shall be based upon analyses 
[required] by Florida Statute. 
Analysis: The proposed amendment complies with all three conditions 



SSA-2020-02    Westover St. 
 

Page 3 of 6  

established by Florida Statutes, §163.3187(1), for the adoption of any small-scale 
comprehensive plan amendment:  
(a)The subject 7.5(+/-) acre parcel is a use of 10 acres or fewer. 
(b)The proposed amendment does not involve a text change to the 

Comprehensive Plan, but only proposes a land use change to the Future 
Land Use Map for a site-specific small-scale development activity. 

(c)The property that is the subject of the proposed amendment is not within a 
designated area of critical state concern. 

Other applicable Comprehensive Plan objectives and policies 
1. Housing 

Policy HOU 1.1.1 Residential Areas.  The Escambia County FLUM and zoning 
maps will identify areas suitable for residential development and/or redevelopment. 
Analysis: The portion that is Commercial zoning is primarily intended to allow more 
diverse and intense commercial uses than the portion zoned HDMU, mixed-use 
district, but residential use is currently allowed in the commercial portion as long as 
development is a predominately commercial development. The proposed Mixed-Use 
Suburban will allow site development to easily achieve the maximum residential 
density. 

2. Future Land Use 
OBJ FLU 1.3 Future Land Use Map Designations 
Designate land uses on the FLUM to discourage urban sprawl, promote mixed use, 
compact development in urban areas, and support development compatible with the 
protection and preservation of rural areas. 
Analysis:  Although the site-specific requirement for residential development to be 
secondary to commercial would be lost in the proposed FLU change, MU-S would 
otherwise promote mixed use development generally within the urban area around 
the subject parcel. 

3. Infrastructure  
Policy HOU 1.1.4 Adequate infrastructure.  To assure the sustainability of 
residential communities, Escambia County will require new residential development 
to locate where adequate infrastructure is available. 
GOAL CMS 1 Concurrency Management System 
Escambia County will adopt a Concurrency Management System to ensure that 
facilities and services needed to support development are available concurrent with 
the impacts of such development. The Concurrency Management System will be 
determined by the provisions of the LDC. 

 

a. Potable Water.   



SSA-2020-02    Westover St. 
 

Page 4 of 6  

Policy INF 4.1.6 Developer Responsibility.  The cost of water line extensions 
made necessary by new development will be the responsibility of the developer 
unless otherwise funded by the service provider. 
Policy INF 4.1.7 Level of Service (LOS) Standards.  The LOS standard for 
potable water service within Escambia County will be 250 gallons per residential 
connection per day. For non-residential uses, the LOS requirements will be based 
upon an Equivalent Residential Connection (ERC) to be calculated by the service 
provider at the time of application. Escambia County will continue to work with the 
water providers to ensure that adequate capacity is available. 
Analysis: The application included documentation confirming available potable 
water source, treatment, pumping, and distribution to the proposed development 
from the Peoples Water Service Company system.  Development of the subject 
parcel would be an efficient use of the available water infrastructure. 

b. Sanitary Sewer.   
Policy INF 1.1.7 Level of Service (LOS) Standards.  Average LOS standard for 
wastewater service is 210 gallons per residential connection per day, and the 
peak LOS will be 350 gallons per residential connection per day. For 
nonresidential uses, the LOS requirements will be based upon an Equivalent 
Residential Connection (ERC), as may be recalculated by the service provider 
from time to time, and on the size of the nonresidential water meter. Escambia 
County will continue to work with the water providers to ensure that adequate 
capacity is available. 
Policy INF 1.1.11 Required New Service Connection.  All new structures 
intended for human occupancy will connect to the ECUA wastewater system 
unless ECUA has determined that it is not feasible to provide wastewater service 
to the proposed structures.  Those structures not required to connect to the 
ECUA wastewater system will not be issued a building permit until the applicant 
has obtained the appropriate permit from the Health Department. 
Analysis: The application included documentation confirming available sanitary 
sewer to the proposed development from the ECUA system at the county’s 
adopted LOS.  Development of the parcel would be an efficient use of the 
available sewer infrastructure. 

c. Solid Waste Disposal.   
Policy INF 2.1.2 Perdido Landfill Operation.  Escambia County will provide 
and operate the Perdido Landfill so as to accommodate the municipal solid waste 
disposal needs of the entire County. 
Policy INF 2.1.4 Level of Service (LOS) Standards.  The LOS standard for 
solid waste disposal will be 6 pounds per capita per day. 
Analysis:  Escambia County continues to maintain its adopted solid waste LOS 
commitments.  The Department of Waste Services reported in its 2018 solid 
waste LOS analysis that the current build-out for disposal at the Perdido Landfill 



SSA-2020-02    Westover St. 
 

Page 5 of 6  

will provide solid waste disposal capacity through 2045. 

d. Stormwater Management. 
Policy INF 3.1.5 Concurrency Management.  Escambia County will ensure the 
provision of stormwater management facilities concurrent with the demand for 
such facilities as created by development or redevelopment through 
implementation of the Concurrency Management System. 
Policy INF 3.1.6 Developer Responsibilities.  Installation of stormwater 
management facilities made necessary by new development will be the 
responsibility of the developer. 
Analysis: Compliance with adopted stormwater management provisions that 
implement these policies would be reviewed and confirmed prior to any site 
development plan approval, regardless of the proposed FLU change or use.  

e. Transportation and Mobility.   
Policy MOB 1.1.2 On-site Facilities.  All new private development will be 
required to provide safe and convenient on-site traffic flow as indicated in the 
LDC.  
Policy MOB 1.1.7 Access Management.  Escambia County will promote access 
management by limiting the number of conflict points that a motorist experiences 
during travel, separating conflict points as much as possible when they cannot be 
eliminated, and controlling the turning movements to facilitate traffic flow on 
affected roadways.  
Analysis: Compliance with adopted on-site traffic flow and access management 
provisions that implement these policies would be reviewed and confirmed prior 
to any site development plan approval, regardless of the proposed FLU change 
or use. The subject parcel is adjacent to commercial and across from existing 
residential and development of the parcel would be compatible with the existing 
residential development as well as an efficient use of the available transportation 
infrastructure. 

4. Protected Resources.   

a. Wellheads.   
Policy CON 1.4.1 Wellhead Protection. Escambia County shall provide 
comprehensive wellhead protection from potential adverse impacts to current 
and future public water supplies. The provisions shall establish specific wellhead 
protection areas and address incompatible land uses, including prohibited 
activities and materials, within those areas. 
Analysis:  The applicant provided information that the subject parcel is within the 
20-year wellhead protection area. The proposed use of multi-family would be no 
different than a single-family subdivision and at the time of development, this 
would be reviewed for compliance with all regulations in the Land Development 
Code. 



SSA-2020-02    Westover St. 
 

Page 6 of 6  

b. Historically Significant Sites.   
Policy FLU 1.2.1 State Assistance.  Escambia County shall utilize all available 
resources of the Florida Department of State, Division of Historical Resources in 
the identification of archaeological and/or historic sites or structures within the 
County.  The County will utilize guidance, direction and technical assistance 
received from this agency to develop provisions and regulations for the 
preservation and protection of such sites and structures. In addition, the County 
will utilize assistance from this agency together with other sources, such as the 
University of West Florida, in identifying newly discovered historic or 
archaeological resources. The identification will include an analysis to determine 
the significance of the resource. 
Analysis:  The applicant indicated the lack of any historical impact and has 
provided data from the Florida Master Site File, Division of Historical Resources. 

c. Wetlands and Habitat. 
Policy CON 1.1.2 Wetland and Habitat Indicators.  Escambia County has 
adopted and will use the National Wetlands Inventory Map, the Escambia County 
Soils Survey, and the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission’s 
(FFWCC) LANDSAT imagery as indicators of the potential presence of wetlands 
or listed wildlife habitat in the review of applications for development approval. 
Analysis: The subject parcel is within the X flood zone.  This would be reviewed 
and confirmed prior to any site development plan approval, and an elevation 
certificate may be needed. 

d. Urban Forest. 
Policy CON 1.6.4 Urban Forest Management.  Escambia County will, through 
LDC provisions and other measures, sustain and promote the urban forest.  
Analysis: Compliance with adopted tree protection and landscaping provisions 
that implement this policy would be reviewed and confirmed prior to any site 
development plan approval, regardless of the proposed FLU change or use. 



LEGAL UKVIEW

(COUNTY DEPARTMENT USE ONLY)

Document- 2020-02 Ordinance- Westover St

Date:

Date requested back by:

Allyson Cain
R

5/06/20

equested by:

Du X, u 595-3547Phone Number:

(LEGAL USE ONLY)

Legal Review by K I CKl/lV ■ -3<3h.A5 0.1

Date Received:

Approved as to fonn and legal sufficiency.

Not approved.

Make subject to legal signoff.

Additional comments:



1  ORDINANCE NUMBER 2020-
2

3

4  AN ORDINANCE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING PART II OF THE
5  ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES, THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY
6  COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 2030, AS AMENDED; AMENDING CHAPTER 7, "THE
7  FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT," POLICY FLU 1.1.1, TO PROVIDE FOR AN
8  AMENDMENT TO THE 2030 FUTURE LAND USE MAP, CHANGING THE FUTURE
9  LAND USE CATEGORY OF A PARCEL WITHIN SECTION 34, TOWNSHIP 2S, RANGE
10 30W, PARCEL NUMBER 0061-000-002, TOTALING 7.5 (+/-) ACRES, LOCATED ON
11 WESTOVER STREET, FROM COMMERCIAL (C) TO MIXED USE SUBURBAN (MU-S)
12 PROVIDING FOR A TITLE; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR
13 INCLUSION IN THE CODE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

14

15 WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 163, Part II, Florida Statutes, Escambia County adopted
16 Its Comprehensive Plan on April 29, 2014; and
17

18 WHEREAS, Chapter 125, Florida Statutes, empowers the Board of County
19 Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida to prepare, amend and enforce
20 comprehensive plans for the development of the County; and
21

22 WHEREAS, the Escambia County Planning Board conducted a public hearing and
23 forwarded a recommendation to the Board of County Commissioners to consider changes
24 (amendments) to the Comprehensive Plan; and
25

26 WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida finds that
27 the adoption of this amendment is in the best interest of the County and its citizens;
28

29 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of County Commissioners of
30 Escambia County, Florida, as follows;
31

32 Section 1. Purpose and Intent
33

34 This Ordinance is enacted to carry out the purpose and intent of, and to exercise the
35 authority set out in, the Community Planning Act, Sections 163.3161 through 163.3215,
36 Florida Statutes.

37

38 Section 2. Title of Comprehensive Plan Amendment
39

40 This Comprehensive Plan amendment shall be entitled - "Small Scale Amendment 2020-
41 02."

42

43

44

Page 1



1  Section 3. Changes to the 2030 Future Land Use Map
2

3  The 2030 Future Land Use Map, as adopted by reference and codified in Part I! of the
4  Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Escambia County Comprehensive Plan: 2030,
5  as amended; Chapter 7, "Future Land Use Element," Policy FLU 1.1.1; and all notations,
6  references and information shown thereon, is further amended to include the following
7  future land use changes:
8

9  A parcel within Section 34, Township 23, Range SOW, parcel number 0061-
10 000-002, totaling 7.5 (+/-) acres, located on Westover Street, as more
11 particularly described in the Boundary Survey description produced by
12 WilsonMiller, Professional Surveying, dated 10/26/2004, attached as
13 Exhibit A, from Commercial (C) to Mixed-Use Suburban (MU-S).

14 Section 4. Severabillty
15

16 If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid or
17 unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, the holding shall in no way affect
18 the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance.
19

20 Section 5. Inclusion in the Code

21

22 It is the intention of the Board of County Commissioners that the provisions of this
23 Ordinance shall be codified as required by Section 125.68, Florida Statutes, and that the
24 sections, subsections and other provisions of this Ordinance may be renumbered or
25 relettered and the word "ordinance" may be changed to "section," "article," or such other
26 appropriate word or phrase in order to accomplish such intentions.
27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34 INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

Page 2



1  Section 6. Effective Date

2

3  Pursuant to Section 163.3184(3)(c), Florida Statutes, this Ordinance shall not become effective
4  until 31 days after adoption. If challenged within 30 days after adoption, this Ordinance shall not
5  become effective until the State Planning Agency or the Administration Commission enters a final
6  order determining the Ordinance to be in compliance.
7

8  DONE AND ENACTED this day of , 2020.
9

10 BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
11 OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA

12

13

14 By:
15 Steven Barry, Chairman
16

17 ATTEST: RAM CHILDERS

18 CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT ^
19 This document approved as to form
20 '®93l sufficiency.

By:
Deputy Clerk Title

Date '
24 (SEAL) ^ ̂
25

26

27 ENACTED:

28 FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE:

29 EFFECTIVE DATE:

21

22

23

Page 3





   
Planning Board-Regular   6. B.           
Meeting Date: 07/06/2020  
Issue: A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending the

Future Land Use Map; SSA-2020-03
From: HORACE JONES, Director 
Organization: Development Services

RECOMMENDATION:
A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending the Future Land Use Map;
SSA-2020-03

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County Commissioners (BCC) for
action, an ordinance amending the Future Land Use Map (FLUM) of the Comprehensive
Plan by Small-Scale Amendment SSA-2020-03.

BACKGROUND:
The small-scale amendment to the future land use (FLU) map of Escambia County
proposes to change the FLU category of a 8.44(+/-) acre parcel from Commercial (C) to
Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U).  The parcel is currently vacant and surrounded
by non-residential uses and  Commercial zoning.  The amendment is proposed to
eliminate the Commercial FLU-based restriction  that allows residential development
only when secondary to commercial development and allow for residential development.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
No budgetary impact is anticipated by the adoption of this Ordinance.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The attached Ordinance has been reviewed and approved for legal sufficiency by Kia
Johnson, Assistant County Attorney. Any recommended legal comments are attached
herein.

PERSONNEL:
No additional personnel are required for implementation of this Ordinance.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
The proposed Ordinance is required by Comprehensive Plan policies to designate land



The proposed Ordinance is required by Comprehensive Plan policies to designate land
uses on the FLUM to discourage urban sprawl, promote mixed use, compact
development in urban areas, and support development compatible with the protection
and preservation of rural areas. Amendment of the FLU Map to designate such land
uses requires public hearing review and recommendation by the Board prior to approval
by the BCC.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
This Ordinance amending the FLUM of the Comprehensive Plan will be filed with the
Department of State following adoption by the BCC. Implementation of this Ordinance
will consist of an amendment to the FLUM and distribution of a copy of the adopted
Ordinance to staff and interested citizens. The proposed Ordinance was prepared by the
Development Services Department, in cooperation with the County Attorney’s Office and
all interested citizens. The Development Services Department will ensure proper
advertisement.

Attachments
Working Case File
Draft Ordinanace
Staff Analysis



SSA-2020-03 



RICHMOND
ST GULF

BEACH HW Y

SM
ITH AVE

BA

RRANCAS
AVE

CHIEFS
W

AY

MINDORO
CIR

N NAVYBLVD

PLESS
A V E

PATTON DR

LEYTE DR

N NAVYBLVD

PAUL A
AV E

W WINTHROP AVE

JAMISON ST

KENNINGTO
N DR

N NAVYBLVD

FLY

N N DR

PAULA
AVE

RUE MAX ST

N
ME

RR
IT

T
ST

BUENA
AVE

DELRAY
DR

MANDALAY DR

LI
NC

OL
N 

RD

S
HA

RR
IS

ST

LO L A LN

N
NA

VY
BL

V D

FR
IS

CO
CT

S
OL D

CORRY
FIELD

RD

W H
IT

E

S T

EARL CT

EL
LI

NO
R

CT

KINCAID
ST

PLESS
AVE

TH OMPSON AVE

TURNERDR

BELL
C T

CL
ARK AVE

DRUID DR

CHIEFS
W AY

E DGEWATER DR

MAGDA
AVE

CHASEVILLE S T

COMMERCE ST

RE
ED

RD

FLEETRD

CROSBY
AVE

7TH S T

N
NAVY

BLV
D

CHIEFS W AY

BRANDON
AVE

MANCHESTER
ST

BARRANCAS AVE

MO

RENO CT

N
NA

VY
BL

V D

1STST

BOEING
ST

3RD
ST

4TH
ST

IONA ST

S
NE

W
W

AR
RI

NG
TO

N
RD

N
NA

VY
BL

VD

W
NAVY BLVD

ELITE
RD

LAKEWOOD RD

MORENO CT

FRISCO RD

PELHAMRD

PRIETO
DR

HERMEY AVEPE
RI

M
ET

ER
R D

E CARVER DRW
 C

AR
VE

R 
DR

DEW ITT
DR

BRANDYW
INERD

BILL PL

ADA W ILSON AVE

N RUNYAN ST

TY
RO

NE

ST

MARINE DR

DONALD
DR

HALSEYDR
DEXTER AVE

WISTERIA AVE
POPPY

AVE

WILSON AVE

MILTON RD

W HIGHW AY 98

F AIRW AY
DR

HARBOURVIEW CIR

BAYSHORE DR

HAWTHORN DR

HENRY ST

COAST RD

PARKDR

N
JA

MA
IC

A
ST

W HIGHW AY 98 BETTY RD

ROBERTS AVE

LE X INGTON
TER

BRIGADIER
ST

ED GEW ATER DR
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 1,000 2,000 3,000

Ft

SSA-2020-03
LOCATION MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer

BAYOU CHICO



SO LD
CO RR Y FIE LD

RD

Pub
Com

HC/LI
MDR MDR

Rec
Rec

HDR
HDR

HDMU

Com

NONE
Con

Con

Com

Com

PATTON DR

N NAVYBLVD

M ORENO CT

MORENO
CTN 

NA
VY

 B
LV

D
N 

NA
VY

 B
LV

D

ED GEW ATER DR

W HIGHWAY 98
W HIGHWAY 98

LEXINGTON TER

BAYOU CHICO

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 300 600 900

Ft

SSA-2020-03
500' RADIUS ZONING

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



SO LD
CO RR Y FIE LD

RD

P

P

C

C
MU-U

MU-U

REC

REC

C

C

C
MU-U

MU-U

MU-U

PATTON DR

N NAVYBLVD

M ORENO CT

MORENO
CTN 

NA
VY

 B
LV

D
N 

NA
VY

 B
LV

D

ED GEW ATER DR

W HIGHWAY 98
W HIGHWAY 98

LEXINGTON TER

BAYOU CHICO

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 300 600 900

Ft

SSA-2020-03
EXISTING FLU

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



SO LD
CO RR Y FIE LD

RD

P

P

C

C
MU-U

MU-U

REC

REC

MU-U

C

C
MU-U

MU-U

MU-U

PATTON DR

N NAVYBLVD

M ORENO CT

MORENO
CTN 

NA
VY

 B
LV

D
N 

NA
VY

 B
LV

D

ED GEW ATER DR

W HIGHWAY 98
W HIGHWAY 98

LEXINGTON TER

BAYOU CHICO

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 300 600 900

Ft

SSA-2020-03
PROPOSED FLU

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



SO LD
CO RR Y FIE LD

RD

PATTON DR

N NAVYBLVD

M ORENO CT

MORENO
CTN 

NA
VY

 B
LV

D
N 

NA
VY

 B
LV

D

ED GEW ATER DR

W HIGHWAY 98
W HIGHWAY 98

LEXINGTON TER

BAYOU CHICO

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 300 600 900

Ft

SSA-2020-03
EXISTING LAND USE

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer

COM

COM

COM

COM

COM

COM

PARK

POST OFFICE

COM

ECUA
ECUA

COM SF

COM

COM

SF SF

COM



S OLD CORRY FIELD RD

N NAVYBLVD

N NAVYBLVD

MORENO CT

W HIGHWAY98

MORENO CT

N
NA

VY
BL

VD

N 
NA

VY
 B

LV
D

LEXING TON TER

FDOT

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 200 400 600

Ft

SSA-2020-03
AERIAL MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



SO LD
CO RR Y FIE LD

RD

WARRINGTON

WARRINGTON

WARRINGTON

WARRINGTON

BARRANCAS

BARRANCAS

PATTON DR

N NAVYBLVD

M ORENO CT

MORENO
CTN 

NA
VY

 B
LV

D
N 

NA
VY

 B
LV

D

ED GEW ATER DR

W HIGHWAY 98
W HIGHWAY 98

LEXINGTON TER

BAYOU CHICO

PARCELS
PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL
MINOR ARTERIAL
COLLECTOR
LOCAL ROAD0 300 600 900

Ft

SSA-2020-03
CRA DISTRICTS

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
Andrew Holmer



Public hearing sign



Looking onto subject 
property from Old Corry 

Field Rd



Looking northwest 
onto property



Looking east across 
Old Corry Field 



Looking north from 
subject property



Looking south from 
subject property



Another view of 
subject property





ESCAMBIA COUNTY DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT

3363 West Park Place, Pensacola, FL 32505 (850) 595-3475 <-<- /i ^ >

FUTURE LAND USE MAP AMENDMENT APPLICATION ^qoH N^ ff>&

(THIS SECTION FOR OFFICE USE ONLY):

TYPE OF REQUEST: SMALL SCALE FLU AMENDMENT _ti
0 LARGE SCALE FLU AMENDMENT ,

Current FLU: Cqkvn Desired FLU: f)M)-\) Zoning: (jpr^ Taken by: A, L
Planning Board Public Hearing, date(s): \ &ft

BCC Public Hearing, proposed date(s):

Fees PaicT2 ,/Z3-S*> Receipt # Date: ''' IJQ

OWNER'S NAME AND HOME ADDRESS AS SHOWN ON PUBLIC RECORDS OF

ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FL

Name: j\\^(S? \\&^^Z C^g^difeiv5^A^&

Address

City: •\>e^i<b^£~o\.c^ State: F^ Zip Code: ^Z&OZ.

Telephone: (g60 ) 4-3g *g>h(o\
Email: tS.^e^^tW Q Ay^aUobViUg . Q^(%

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY:

Street address: ^ O\ <s>. Q\^ C^\TK\A xLq^X'XU

Subdivision:

Property reference number: Section ^pO Township £• ^ja Range 3?Q

Parcel l0°0- OOP- OOl Lot Block

Size of Property (acres) i5 • ^ <^org^

FLU Page 3 of 8

























































Development Services Department
Escambia County, Florida

PLANNING BOARD

REZONING SUMMARY FORM

Property Reference Number

Q\&Cor^Fx*\ci far
Address

L>/Ul 1-^KypkJl
Name

• Owner fJAgent Referral Form

Included? Y/N

MAPS PREPARED

• Zoning

• FLU

• Aerial

• Other:

PROPERTY INFORMATION
•j

Current Zoning: ^Oh<-\_
Future Land Use: ^-U
Overlay/AIPD: /ly//t-
Subdivision:

_ Size of Property:' F'-Z_

Commissioner District: -\

DSAP A/4

Sanitary Sewer Septic Tank Density/Use Savings Clause Yes No X

it)CRA Redevelopment Area*: Jl>4,rri ^<-fi
"For more info please contact the CRA at 595-3217 priorto application submittal.

iofflflq: mU-UDesired Zoning
Is Locational Criteria applicable?.

COMMENTS

If so, is a compatibility analysis required?.

/WlvCaA ijucc^^ ApcA i^a-J- s Lild] y\e-gdl EJA=J CkgvKg g. io

_ *f^|cc'CsTlrrv

• Applicant will contact staff for next appointment
• Applicant decided against rezoning property
• Applicant was referred to another process

• BOA • DRC • Other:
Process Name

Staff present:JU •- - ••-•• —

Applicant/Agent Name &Signature: \^jA$j5J\V-* \\&-K --r^VjoW
This form is for rezoning inquiries only and it doesn't negate or elevate the owner/applicant/ agent from any other necessary
regulations, process or procedures required for development of this site. Applicant shall not rely on comments made by any
County staff as approval or rejection of the proposed development, until the appropriate application has been submitted.

3363 West Park Place Pensacola, FL 32505
(850) 595-3475 * FAX: (850) 595-3481

(Revised 02/11/20)
H:\DEV SRVCS\FOR-000 Forms\Rezoning\Rezoning summary Form 02-11-2020.docx

%*,Date:











 

PB : 06-02-20 Page 1 
Re: SSA-2020-03 
Draft 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2020-___ 1 
 2 
 3 

AN ORDINANCE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING PART II OF THE 4 
ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES, THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY 5 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 2030, AS AMENDED; AMENDING CHAPTER 7, “THE 6 
FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT,” POLICY FLU 1.1.1, TO PROVIDE FOR AN 7 
AMENDMENT TO THE  2030 FUTURE LAND USE MAP, CHANGING THE FUTURE 8 
LAND USE CATEGORY OF A PARCEL WITHIN SECTION 50, TOWNSHIP 2S, RANGE 9 
30W, PARCEL NUMBERS 1000-000-001, TOTALING 8.44 (+/-) ACRES, LOCATED ON  10 
OLD CORRY FIELD ROAD, FROM COMMERCIAL (C) TO MIXED USE URBAN (MU-11 
U); PROVIDING FOR A TITLE; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR 12 
INCLUSION IN THE CODE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 13 

 14 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 163, Part II, Florida Statutes, Escambia County adopted 15 
its Comprehensive Plan on April 29, 2014; and  16 
 17 
WHEREAS, Chapter 125, Florida Statutes, empowers the Board of County 18 
Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida to prepare, amend and enforce 19 
comprehensive plans for the development of the County; and 20 
 21 
WHEREAS, the Escambia County Planning Board conducted a public hearing and 22 
forwarded a recommendation to the Board of County Commissioners to consider changes 23 
(amendments) to the Comprehensive Plan; and 24 
 25 
WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida finds that 26 
the adoption of this amendment is in the best interest of the County and its citizens;  27 
 28 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of County Commissioners of 29 
Escambia County, Florida, as follows: 30 
 31 
Section 1. Purpose and Intent 32 
 33 
This Ordinance is enacted to carry out the purpose and intent of, and to exercise the 34 
authority set out in, the Community Planning Act, Sections 163.3161 through 163.3215, 35 
Florida Statutes. 36 
 37 
Section 2. Title of Comprehensive Plan Amendment 38 
 39 
This Comprehensive Plan amendment shall be entitled – "Small Scale Amendment 2020-40 
03."   41 
 42 
 43 
 44 



 

PB : 06-02-20 Page 2 
Re: SSA-2020-03 
Draft 1 

 

Section 3.  Changes to the 2030 Future Land Use Map 1 
 2 
The 2030 Future Land Use Map, as adopted by reference and codified in Part II of the 3 
Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Escambia County Comprehensive Plan: 2030, 4 
as amended; Chapter 7, "Future Land Use Element," Policy FLU 1.1.1; and all notations, 5 
references and information shown thereon, is further amended to include the following 6 
future land use changes: 7 
 8 

A parcel within Section 50, Township 2S, Range 30W, parcel number 1000-9 
000-001, totaling 8.44 (+/-) acres, located on Old Corry Field Road, as more 10 
particularly described in the Boundary Survey description produced by   11 
Lands End Surveying, registered land surveyor Larry E. Stegall dated 12 
4/27/2020, attached as Exhibit A, from Commercial (C) to Mixed-Use Urban 13 
(MU-U).  14 

Section 4.     Severability 15 
 16 
If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid or 17 
unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, the holding shall in no way affect 18 
the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 19 
 20 
Section 5. Inclusion in the Code 21 
 22 
It is the intention of the Board of County Commissioners that the provisions of this 23 
Ordinance shall be codified as required by Section 125.68, Florida Statutes, and that the 24 
sections, subsections and other provisions of this Ordinance may be renumbered or 25 
relettered and the word "ordinance" may be changed to "section," "article," or such other 26 
appropriate word or phrase in order to accomplish such intentions. 27 
 28 
 29 
 30 
 31 
 32 

 33 
 34 

INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 35 
 36 
 37 
 38 
 39 
 40 
 41 
 42 
 43 
 44 



 

PB : 06-02-20 Page 3 
Re: SSA-2020-03 
Draft 1 

 

Section 6.  Effective Date 1 
  2 
Pursuant to Section 163.3184(3)(c), Florida Statutes, this Ordinance shall not become effective 3 
until 31 days after adoption.  If challenged within 30 days after adoption, this Ordinance shall not 4 
become effective until the State Planning Agency  or the Administration Commission enters a final 5 
order determining the Ordinance to be in compliance. 6 
 7 
DONE AND ENACTED this_____ day of ______________, 2020. 8 
 9 

      BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 10 
    OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 11 

 12 
  13 

      By: _________________________________ 14 
Steven Barry, Chairman  15 

 16 
ATTEST: PAM CHILDERS 17 

CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT 18 
 19 
 20 
By: ___________________________    21 

Deputy Clerk  22 
 23 
(SEAL) 24 
 25 
 26 
ENACTED: 27 
FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE: 28 
EFFECTIVE DATE:  29 



SSA-2020-03    Old Corry Field Rd. 
 

Page 1 of 6  

Comprehensive Plan 
Small-Scale Future Land Use Map Amendment 

Staff Analysis 

General Data 

Project Name:  SSA-2020-03 
Location:  901 S Old Corry Field Rd 
Parcel #:  50-2S-30-1000-000-001 
Acreage:  8.44 (+/-) acres 
Redevelopment 
Area:  Warrington  
FLU Request:  From Commercial (C) to Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U) 
Applicant: KG Development, Agent for Area Housing Commission, 

Owner 
Meeting Dates:  Planning Board, July 6, 2020 

 BCC, August 6, 2020 

Summary of Proposed Amendment: 
The small-scale amendment to the future land use (FLU) map of Escambia County 
proposes to change the FLU category of a vacant 8.44 (+/-) acre parcel from 
Commercial (C) to Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U).  The parcel fronts Old Corry Field Road, a 
collector roadway with the zoning designation of Commercial (Com) and is in the 
Warrington Overlay (Warr-OL).  A letter from the Community Redevelopment (CRA) is 
included in the packet. 
A FLU change to MU-U will allow residential development within the existing zoning 
district regardless of a primary commercial component as currently required by the 
existing Commercial FLU.  The existing and proposed future land use categories are 
described in Comprehensive Plan Policy FLU 1.3.1 and summarized as follows: 

Commercial.  “Intended for professional office, retail, wholesale, service and general 
business trade.  Residential development may be permitted only if secondary to a 
primary commercial development.”  The range of allowable uses is “residential, retail 
and services, professional office, light industrial, recreational facilities, public and 
civic.”  The FLU has a maximum residential density of 25 du/acre and a maximum 
floor area ratio (FAR) of 1.0. 
Mixed-Use Urban.  “Intended for an intense mix of residential and non-residential 
uses while promoting compatible infill development and the separation of urban 
and suburban land uses within the category as a whole.”  The range of allowable 
uses is “residential, retail and services, professional office, light industrial, 
recreational facilities, public and civic.”  The FLU has a maximum residential 



SSA-2020-03    Old Corry Field Rd. 
 

Page 2 of 6  

density of 25 du/acre and a maximum floor area ratio (FAR) of 2.0. 

Warrington Overlay District.  “District establishes supplemental land use 
regulations to support the objectives of the adopted Warrington area community 
redevelopment plan.  The intent of the additional land use controls is to enhance 
the character of an area undergoing revitalization, especially along those 
commercial corridors that provide primary access or gateways to the adjoining 
military installations within the Warrington area.  CRA has provided comments 
regarding the overlay area. 

Land Development Code FLU map amendment requirements 
Sec. 2-7.3 (e) Comprehensive Plan map amendments 
(3) Compliance review.   

a. General amendment conditions.  All amendments to the Comprehensive Plan 
shall demonstrate the following general conditions, allowing that where an 
amendment is imposed by a state or federal requirement it need only 
demonstrate the conditions to the greatest extent practicable under that 
requirement: 
1. Need and benefit.  There is an identified land use need particular to the 

scope and function of the Comprehensive Plan for which an amendment is 
clearly warranted. 
Analysis: 
The provision of affordable housing is consistent with Comprehensive Plan 
objective OBJ HOU 1.2, Affordable Housing, to “assure the provision of safe, 
sanitary and affordable housing for moderate, low, and very low-income 
residents.”  Affordable housing is defined as “housing with costs, including 
monthly rents or mortgage payments, taxes, insurance, and utilities, not 
exceeding 30 percent of the median adjusted gross annual income for the 
households [defined] in Florida Statutes as amended.” 
The requested FLU change would remove the Commercial FLU-based 
restriction on the subject parcel that allows residential development only when 
secondary to commercial development. 
Although county housing officials confirm there is a county-wide shortage of 
below market rate or subsidized residential development, the application did 
not appear to reference any specific definition of affordable housing.  

2. Professional practices.  The proposed amendment applies contemporary 
planning principles, engineering standards, and other professional practices 
to provide an effective and efficient remedy for the identified land use problem 
or need. 
Analysis: The proposed change to MU-U would be compatible to the existing 
affordable housing development on the east side of Old Corry Field Rd. 



SSA-2020-03    Old Corry Field Rd. 
 

Page 3 of 6  

Although the parcel’s Com zoning is shared with most surrounding parcels, 
the proposed multi-family residential use of the parcel would generally be in 
keeping with the intended category-wide mixed use of MU-U and the general 
revitalization intent of the Warrington overlay.  CRA provided a letter, included 
in the packet, stating this parcel would be a suitable for residential rather than 
a commercial development and have no additional comments at this time.  
 

b. FLUM amendment conditions.  In addition to the general amendment 
conditions, a future land use map amendment shall be based upon analyses 
[required] by Florida Statute. 
Analysis: The proposed amendment complies with all three conditions 
established by Florida Statutes, §163.3187(1), for the adoption of any small-scale 
comprehensive plan amendment:  
(a) The subject 8.27(+/-) acre parcel is a use of 10 acres or fewer. 
(b) The proposed amendment does not involve a text change to the 

Comprehensive Plan, but only proposes a land use change to the Future 
Land Use Map for a site-specific small-scale development activity. 

(c) The property that is the subject of the proposed amendment is not within a 
designated area of critical state concern. 

Other applicable Comprehensive Plan objectives and policies 
1. Housing 

Policy HOU 1.1.1 Residential Areas.  The Escambia County FLUM and zoning 
maps will identify areas suitable for residential development and/or redevelopment. 
Analysis:  The proposed MU-U replacement of the existing Commercial FLU will 
allow site development to achieve the maximum residential density more easily.  The 
existing Commercial zoning is intended to allow more diverse and intense 
commercial uses than the residential or neighborhood commercial districts, but 
residential use is allowed.  

2. Future Land Use 
OBJ FLU 1.3 Future Land Use Map Designations 
Designate land uses on the FLUM to discourage urban sprawl, promote mixed use, 
compact development in urban areas, and support development compatible with the 
protection and preservation of rural areas. 
Analysis:  Although the site-specific requirement for residential development to be 
secondary to commercial would be lost in the proposed FLU change, MU-U would 
otherwise promote mixed use development generally within the urban area around 
the subject parcel. 

3. Infrastructure  
Policy HOU 1.1.4 Adequate infrastructure.  To assure the sustainability of 



SSA-2020-03    Old Corry Field Rd. 
 

Page 4 of 6  

residential communities, Escambia County will require new residential development 
to locate where adequate infrastructure is available. 
GOAL CMS 1 Concurrency Management System 
Escambia County will adopt a Concurrency Management System to ensure that 
facilities and services needed to support development are available concurrent with 
the impacts of such development. The Concurrency Management System will be 
determined by the provisions of the LDC. 

a. Potable Water.   
Policy INF 4.1.6 Developer Responsibility.  The cost of water line extensions 
made necessary by new development will be the responsibility of the developer 
unless otherwise funded by the service provider. 
Policy INF 4.1.7 Level of Service (LOS) Standards.  The LOS standard for 
potable water service within Escambia County will be 250 gallons per residential 
connection per day. For non-residential uses, the LOS requirements will be based 
upon an Equivalent Residential Connection (ERC) to be calculated by the service 
provider at the time of application. Escambia County will continue to work with the 
water providers to ensure that adequate capacity is available. 
Analysis: The application included documentation confirming available potable 
water source, treatment, pumping, and distribution to the proposed development 
from the Peoples Water Service Company system.  Development of the subject 
parcel would be an efficient use of the available water infrastructure. 

b. Sanitary Sewer.   
Policy INF 1.1.7 Level of Service (LOS) Standards.  Average LOS standard for 
wastewater service is 210 gallons per residential connection per day, and the 
peak LOS will be 350 gallons per residential connection per day. For 
nonresidential uses, the LOS requirements will be based upon an Equivalent 
Residential Connection (ERC), as may be recalculated by the service provider 
from time to time, and on the size of the nonresidential water meter. Escambia 
County will continue to work with the water providers to ensure that adequate 
capacity is available. 
Policy INF 1.1.11 Required New Service Connection.  All new structures 
intended for human occupancy will connect to the ECUA wastewater system 
unless ECUA has determined that it is not feasible to provide wastewater service 
to the proposed structures.  Those structures not required to connect to the 
ECUA wastewater system will not be issued a building permit until the applicant 
has obtained the appropriate permit from the Health Department. 
Analysis: The application included documentation confirming available sanitary 
sewer to the proposed development from the ECUA system at the county’s 
adopted LOS.  Development of the parcel would be an efficient use of the 
available sewer infrastructure. 

c. Solid Waste Disposal.   



SSA-2020-03    Old Corry Field Rd. 
 

Page 5 of 6  

Policy INF 2.1.2 Perdido Landfill Operation.  Escambia County will provide 
and operate the Perdido Landfill so as to accommodate the municipal solid waste 
disposal needs of the entire County. 
Policy INF 2.1.4 Level of Service (LOS) Standards.  The LOS standard for 
solid waste disposal will be 6 pounds per capita per day. 
Analysis:  Escambia County continues to maintain its adopted solid waste LOS 
commitments.  The Department of Waste Services reported in its 2018 solid 
waste LOS analysis that the current build-out for disposal at the Perdido Landfill 
will provide solid waste disposal capacity through 2045. 

d. Stormwater Management. 
Policy INF 3.1.5 Concurrency Management.  Escambia County will ensure the 
provision of stormwater management facilities concurrent with the demand for 
such facilities as created by development or redevelopment through 
implementation of the Concurrency Management System. 
Policy INF 3.1.6 Developer Responsibilities.  Installation of stormwater 
management facilities made necessary by new development will be the 
responsibility of the developer. 
Analysis: Compliance with adopted stormwater management provisions that 
implement these policies would be reviewed and confirmed prior to any site 
development plan approval, regardless of the proposed FLU change or use.  

e. Transportation and Mobility.   
Policy MOB 1.1.2 On-site Facilities.  All new private development will be 
required to provide safe and convenient on-site traffic flow as indicated in the 
LDC.  
Policy MOB 1.1.7 Access Management.  Escambia County will promote access 
management by limiting the number of conflict points that a motorist experiences 
during travel, separating conflict points as much as possible when they cannot be 
eliminated, and controlling the turning movements to facilitate traffic flow on 
affected roadways.  
Analysis: Any redevelopment of the subject parcel is required to comply with the 
current onsite parking, access management provisions and other applicable 
development standards of the LDC. These policies would be reviewed and 
confirmed prior to any site development plan approval, regardless of the 
proposed FLU change or use. The subject parcel is located along an existing 
paved arterial street and residential development of the parcel would be an 
efficient use of the available transportation infrastructure. 

4. Protected Resources.   
a. Wellheads.   

Policy CON 1.4.1 Wellhead Protection. Escambia County shall provide 
comprehensive wellhead protection from potential adverse impacts to current 



SSA-2020-03    Old Corry Field Rd. 
 

Page 6 of 6  

and future public water supplies. The provisions shall establish specific wellhead 
protection areas and address incompatible land uses, including prohibited 
activities and materials, within those areas. 
Analysis:  The applicant provided information that the subject parcel is not within 
any of the wellhead areas. 

b. Historically Significant Sites.   
Policy FLU 1.2.1 State Assistance.  Escambia County shall utilize all available 
resources of the Florida Department of State, Division of Historical Resources in 
the identification of archaeological and/or historic sites or structures within the 
County.  The County will utilize guidance, direction and technical assistance 
received from this agency to develop provisions and regulations for the 
preservation and protection of such sites and structures. In addition, the County 
will utilize assistance from this agency together with other sources, such as the 
University of West Florida, in identifying newly discovered historic or 
archaeological resources. The identification will include an analysis to determine 
the significance of the resource. 
Analysis:  The applicant indicated the lack of any historical impact and has 
provided data from the Florida Master Site File, Division of Historical Resources. 

c. Wetlands and Habitat. 
Policy CON 1.1.2 Wetland and Habitat Indicators.  Escambia County has 
adopted and will use the National Wetlands Inventory Map, the Escambia County 
Soils Survey, and the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission’s 
(FFWCC) LANDSAT imagery as indicators of the potential presence of wetlands 
or listed wildlife habitat in the review of applications for development approval. 
Analysis: The subject parcel is within the X flood zone, and according to the 
Escambia County Soil Survey, hydric soils where shown on the northern portion 
of the parcel. Hydric soils are an indicator of possible wetlands and this will need 
to be reviewed as a part of any future development. 

d. Urban Forest. 
Policy CON 1.6.4 Urban Forest Management.  Escambia County will, through 
LDC provisions and other measures, sustain and promote the urban forest.  
Analysis: Compliance with adopted tree protection and landscaping provisions 
that implement this policy would be reviewed and confirmed prior to any site 
development plan approval, regardless of the proposed FLU change or use. 



   
Planning Board-Regular   6. C.           
Meeting Date: 07/06/2020  
Issue: A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending Chapter

7, Policy FLU 1.1.1, 2030 Future Land Use Map LSA-2020-02
From: HORACE JONES, Director 
Organization: Development Services

RECOMMENDATION:
A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending Chapter 7, Policy FLU
1.1.1 and FLU 5.1 to Provide for an Amendment to the 2030 Future Land Use Map named
LSA-2020-02

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County Commissioners (BCC) for
transmittal to DEO, an Ordinance amending the Comprehensive Plan, Chapter 7, 2030
FLU map, for the specific parcel 25-2S-31-1303-000-000, requesting to change the
existing FLUM designation from Commercial (C) to Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U) of 88.24
(+/-) acres.

BACKGROUND:
The applicant requests a Future Land Use (FLU) map amendment to change the FLU
category of 88.24 (+/-) acres from Commercial to Mixed-Use (MU-U). The current zoning
designation of the referenced parcels is Heavy Commercial Light Industrial (HC/LI). The
FLU amendment proposed will remove the predominantly commercial
development requiredment factor out and allow for a more mix-use development
allowing for residential development. 

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
No budgetary impact is anticipated by the adoption of this Ordinance.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The attached Ordinance has been reviewed and approved for legal sufficiency by Kia M.
Johnson, Assistant County Attorney. Any recommended legal comments are attached
herein.

PERSONNEL:
No additional personnel are required for implementation of this Ordinance.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
The proposed Ordinance is consistent with the Board’s goal “to increase citizen



The proposed Ordinance is consistent with the Board’s goal “to increase citizen
involvement in, access to, and approval of, County government activities.”

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
This Ordinance, amending the LDC, will  be filed with the Department of State following
adoption by the board.

Implementation of this Ordinance will consist of an amendment to the LDC and
distribution of a copy of the adopted Ordinance to interested citizens and staff.

The proposed Ordinance was prepared by the Development Services Department, in
cooperation with  the County Attorney’s Office and all interested citizens. The
Development Services Department will ensure proper advertisement.

Attachments
Working Case File
Staff Analysis
Draft Ordinance



LSA-2020-02 



$+293

$+297

!(30

!(298/30

!(173

!(298

£¤98
W HIGHWAY 98

SK
Y 

HA
W

K D
R

CROW
N

POINTEBLVD

N
BL

UE
AN

GE
LP

KWY

JU
AN

 R
D

VODA CT

RI
PS

AW
 LN

AILANTHUS DR

JOLYNE DR

CARRIER DR

WILLOW LAKE DR

HAVBURG DR

BRIARWOOD
DR

LITTLE CREEK DR

SOUTHWINDCIR

ORA DR

AILERON AVE

HEATHERWOOD DR

TA
NT

ON
 C

T

BERR YHILL RD

MARELLA CT

LAZY ACR E S
ST

DO
MI

TIL
LA

 ST

CA
ST

LE POINTE WAY

CENTRE ST

LAHAINA CT

CREEK RID
GE

DR

ARUBA DR

SILV ER CREEK DR

SOUTHSKY LN

AME T HYST DR

SE
AP

INE
CIR

CY
RI

LL
A C

T

KA
TH

RY
N 

DR

LIT
TL

E 
CR

EE
K L

N

PIN
E

HIL
L D

R

JESTER CT

SOUTHBAY DR

CASSIA DR

OTIS WAY

SKYSTONE CT

TANTON RD

HA
NN

A'S
 TE

R

FAIR PINE DR

SA
M'S

LN

OAK ALY

OAK VALLEY DR

TANTON LN

JAMIE DR

KA
RL

BU
RG

 D
R DEE'S RD

TA
LL

OW
 TR

EE
 D

R

VERDE CT

ARVA CT
TRIAD BLVD

BRIDGE CREEK DR

LOCHMOOR DR

GL
AD

IO
LA

 D
R

MYRSHINE DR

BE
NN

IN
G

PL

HARBOUR PL

AIL
AN

THUS CIR

BARKL E Y ST

CALLAN CT

CE
DA

R 
BL

UF
F D

R
GR

EE
N 

PI
NE

 D
R GINKO DR

LOQUAT DR

GU
LF

 B
AY

 LN

LILLIAN HWY

BUC

K SAW DR

PE
PP

ER
TR

EE
TE

R

JO
AQ

UI
N 

RD

CE
SS

NA
 D

R

MI
RA

MAR DR

CEDARCREEKDR

NIX RD

BELIZE DR

RUDDERLN

EMMONS LN

RU
ST

IC
 LN

AN
TIG

UA CIR

HALCYON CIR

S BL
UE

AN
GE

L P
KW

Y

DOG TRACK RD
RIOLA PL

BA
UE

R 
RD

STREETS
MJR_RDS

MAJOR ROAD
STREET
RAILROAD
WETLANDS_2006
Subject Parcel

0 2,000 4,000 6,000
Ft

LSA-2020-02
LOCATION & WETLANDS MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
John C Fisher



Con

LDR

Com

HC/LI LDMU

HDMU

MDR $+297

!(298/30

!(30£¤98

DOG TRACK RD

CREEK RIDGE DR

BRIDGECREEK TER

RI
PS

AW
 LN

LILLIAN HWY

UPPER
H ER ON

WAY

BROOK BEND RD

WILLOW LAKE DR

LITTLE CREEK DR

PINE HILL CIR

RI
OL

A P
L

HEATHERWOOD DR

CENTRE ST

CROSSCUT DR

BAGLEY CT

SILVER CREEK DR

OR
A 

DR

PIN
E HIL

L D
R WI

LL
OW

 LA
KE

 C
IR

WI
LL

OW
 LA

KE
 C

T

BLUEBAY LN

HEATHERW
OOD

CIR

HA
NN

A'S
 TE

R

ARUBA DR

FAIR PINE DR

HEATHERW
OO

D
ST

SAM'S LN

TRAILBLAZER WAY

OAK VALL EY DR

OAK
VALLEY CIR

OAK ALY

BRIDGE CREEK DR

AILERON AVE

WILD HE
RO

N
W

AY

BENNING PL

NIX RD

BUCKSAW DR

TANTON RD

W HIGHWAY 98

RU
ST

IC
 LN

FDOT

500 Foot Buffer
PARCELS
RAILROAD

STREETS
MJR_RDS

MAJOR ROAD
STREET

0 660 1,320 1,980
Ft

LSA-2020-02
ZONING MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
John C Fisher



C

CON

MU-U

MU-S

$+297

!(298/30

!(30£¤98

DOG TRACK RD

CREEK RIDGE DR

BRIDGECREEK TER

RI
PS

AW
 LN

LILLIAN HWY

UPPER
H ER ON

WAY

BROOK BEND RD

WILLOW LAKE DR

LITTLE CREEK DR

PINE HILL CIR

RI
OL

A P
L

HEATHERWOOD DR

CENTRE ST

CROSSCUT DR

BAGLEY CT

SILVER CREEK DR

OR
A 

DR

PIN
E HIL

L D
R WI

LL
OW

 LA
KE

 C
IR

WI
LL

OW
 LA

KE
 C

T

BLUEBAY LN

HEATHERW
OOD

CIR

HA
NN

A'S
 TE

R

ARUBA DR

FAIR PINE DR

HEATHERW
OO

D
ST

SA
M'S LN

TRAILBLAZER WAY

OAK VALL EY DR

OAK
VALLEY CIR

OAK ALY

BRIDGE CREEK DR

AILERON AVE

WILD HE
RO

N
W

AY

BENNING PL

NIX RD

BUCKSAW DR

TANTON RD

W HIGHWAY 98

RU
ST

IC
 LN

FDOT

500 Foot Buffer
PARCELS
RAILROAD

STREETS
MJR_RDS

MAJOR ROAD
STREET

0 660 1,320 1,980
Ft

LSA-2020-02
FLU MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
John C Fisher



C

CON

MU-U

MU-S $+297

!(298/30

£¤98
LILLIAN HWY

DOG TRACK RD

RI
PS

AW
 LN

BRIDGECREEK TER

UPPER
H ER ON

W AY

BROOK BEND RD

ARUBA DR

WILLOW LAKE DR

LITTLE CREEK DR

PINE HILL CIR

HEATHERWOOD DR

BAGLEY CT

AILERON AVE

CROSSCUT DR

SILVE R CRE EK DR

PIN
EH

ILL
DR

WI
LL

OW
 LA

KE
 C

IR

WI
LL

OW
 LA

KE
 C

T

HEATHERW
OOD

CIR

FAIR PINE DR

HEATHERW
OOD

ST

SA
M'S LN

TRAILBLAZER WAY

OAK VALL EY DR

OAK VALLEY CIR

OAK ALY

CREEK RIDGE DR

CENTRE ST

BRIDGE CREEK DR

WILD HER ON
W

AY

BENNING
PL

TANTON RD

BUCKSAW DR

RU
ST

IC
 LN

FDOT

500 Foot Buffer
PARCELS
RAILROAD

STREETS
MJR_RDS

MAJOR ROAD
STREET

0 580 1,160 1,740
Ft

LSA-2020-02
PROPOSED FLU MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
John C Fisher

MU-U



$+297

BROOK BEND RD

WILLOW LAKE DR

LITTLE CREEK DR

OA
K A

LY

CREEK RIDGE DR

PIN
E HIL

L DR

WI
LL

OW
 LA

KE
 C

T

FAIR PINE DR

OAK
VALLEY CIR

SILVER CREEK DR

BRIDGE CREEK DR

BRIDGE CREEK TER
OAK VALLEY DR

BUCKSAW DR

DOG TRACK RD

TRAILBLAZER WAY

FDOT

PARCELS
RAILROAD

STREETS
MJR_RDS

MAJOR ROAD
STREET

0 440 880 1,320
Ft

LSA-2020-02
AERIAL MAP

Planning and Zoning Dept.

This map
is provided for information 

purposes only. The data is not
guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for 

which it was gathered.
John C Fisher













M ULLINS. LLC
CIVIL ENGINEERING, DEVELOPMENT DESIGN I

SURVEYING, LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE]
41 N. Jefferson Street, Suite 106, Pensacola, FL 32502

May 20, 2020

Escambia County Planning and Zoning

3393 W Park Place

Pensacola, FL32502

RE: Heron's Landing Master Plan
Transmittal Letter for Large Scale Map Amendment

Attached for your review and use are the following items required for pre-application submittal.

1. Transmittal letter

2. Project Narrative

3. email with all documents

Please advise is you require any further information. Thank you.

Sincerely,

Joe A. Rector, Jr.

Regional Vice-President

MullinsLLC

















































































































Comprehensive Plan  
Large-Scale Future Land Use Map Amendment  

Staff Analysis  
 
General Data 
 
Project Name:  LSA 2020-02– Amending the Comprehensive Plan, Chapter 7, 

2030 FLU map. 
Location:  951 Dog Track Road  
 
Parcel #s:  25-2S-31-1303-000-000 
       
Acreage:  88.24 (+/-) acres. 
Request:  Commercial (C) to Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U).    
Agent:  Joe A. Rector, Jr. -VP Mullins LLC, Agent for Pensacola 

Greyhound Racing LLP, Brent Pinkston. 
Meeting Dates: Planning Board, July 6, 2020 
   BCC August 6, 2020 (Transmittal) 
 
 

Site Description and Summary of Proposed Amendment: 
The parcel is located on the west side of Dog Track Road about .25 miles (+/-) south of 
the intersection West Highway 98/Lillian Highway and 1.5 miles (+/-) north of Blue Angle 
Parkway.  

Commercial. “Intended for professional office, retail, wholesale, service and 
general business trade. Residential development may be permitted only if 
secondary to a primary commercial development.” “Range of Allowable Uses: 
Residential, retail and services, professional office, light industrial, recreational 
facilities, public and civic.”  The FLU has a maximum residential density of 25 
du/acre and a maximum floor area ratio (FAR) of 1.0. 
Mixed-Use Urban.  “Intended for an intense mix of residential and non-residential 
uses while promoting compatible infill development and the separation of urban 
and suburban land uses within the category as a whole.”  The range of allowable 
uses is “residential, retail and services, professional office, light industrial, 
recreational facilities, public and civic.”  The FLU has a maximum residential 
density of 25 du/acre and a maximum floor area ratio (FAR) of 2.0. 

Analysis of Availability of Facilities and Services:  
The availability of public facilities and services for the site of a Future Land Use map 
amendment requires analysis of the general demands of its proposed use.  All specific 
level of service (LOS) standards established by Escambia County are evaluated for 



LSA 2019-05 – Amending the Comprehensive Plan, Chapter 7, 2030 FLU map. 
 

Page 2 of 7 

compliance during the review processes prescribed by the LDC for approval of 
proposed development. 

Sanitary Sewer Service. 
CP Policy INF 1.1.7 Level of Service (LOS) Standards.  Average LOS standard for 
wastewater service is 210 gallons per residential connection per day, and the peak LOS 
will be 350 gallons per residential connection per day.  For nonresidential uses, the LOS 
requirements will be based upon an Equivalent Residential Connection (ERC), as may 
be recalculated by the service provider from time to time, and on the size of the 
nonresidential water meter.  Escambia County will continue to work with the water 
providers to ensure that adequate capacity is available. 

CP Policy INF 1.1.11 Required New Service Connection.  All new structures intended 
for human occupancy will connect to the ECUA wastewater system unless ECUA has 
determined that it is not feasible to provide wastewater service to the proposed 
structures.  Those structures not required to connect to the ECUA wastewater system 
will not be issued a building permit until the applicant has obtained the appropriate 
permit from the Health Department. 

Analysis: The subject property is within the service area of the Emerald Coast Utility 
Authority (ECUA) for sanitary sewer. The applicant provided in their application that an 
ECUA lift station will be required for the development. ECUA currently already provides 
water and sanitation to the existing structures on site. ECUA anticipates no problems in 
potable water production well capacity or wastewater treatment plant capacity for the 
flow rates. Any new proposed development will have a complete reviewed during the 
Development Review Process, as well must be designed, approved and constructed in 
accordance with ECUA’s policies, procedures, and all applicable permitting 
requirements. 

Solid Waste Disposal.   
CP Policy INF 2.1.2 Perdido Landfill Operation.  Escambia County will provide and 
operate the Perdido Landfill so as to accommodate the municipal solid waste disposal 
needs of the entire County. 
CP Policy INF 2.1.4 Level of Service (LOS) Standards. The LOS standard for solid 
waste disposal will be 6 pounds per capita per day. 

Analysis: Escambia County continues to maintain its adopted solid waste LOS 
commitments.  The Department of Waste Services reported in its 2018 solid waste 
LOS analysis that the current build-out for disposal at the Perdido Landfill will provide 
solid waste disposal capacity through 2045. 

Potable Water Service.   
CP Policy INF 4.1.4 Concurrency Management.  Escambia County will ensure the 
provision of potable water facilities concurrent with the demand for such facilities but no 
later than the certificate of occupancy, as created by development or redevelopment 
through the implementation of the Concurrency Management System. 



LSA 2019-05 – Amending the Comprehensive Plan, Chapter 7, 2030 FLU map. 
 

Page 3 of 7 

CP Policy INF 4.1.6 Developer Responsibility.  The cost of water line extensions 
made necessary by new development will be the responsibility of the developer unless 
otherwise funded by the service provider. 
CP Policy INF 4.1.7 Level of Service (LOS) Standards.  The LOS standard for potable 
water service within Escambia County will be 250 gallons per residential connection per 
day.  For non-residential uses, the LOS requirements will be based upon an Equivalent 
Residential Connection (ERC) to be calculated by the service provider at the time of 
application.  Escambia County will continue to work with the water providers to ensure 
that adequate capacity is available. 

Analysis: Based on the applicant’s documentation the parcel is under the ECUA 
service area; the applicant did submit a letter from ECUA assuring there is capacity 
reservation availability from ECUA. Any proposed development will submit for a 
complete review and obtain approval from the Development Review Committee. 

Stormwater Management. 
CP Policy INF 3.1.5 Concurrency Management.  Escambia County will ensure the 
provision of stormwater management facilities concurrent with the demand for such 
facilities as created by development or redevelopment through implementation of the 
Concurrency Management System. 
CP Policy INF 3.1.6 Developer Responsibilities.  Installation of stormwater 
management facilities made necessary by new development will be the responsibility 
of the developer. 
CP Policy INF 3.1.7 Level of Service (LOS) Standards.  Stormwater management 
LOS will be monitored through the provisions in the LDC design standards.  
Analysis: Compliance with adopted stormwater management provisions that implement 
these policies would be reviewed and confirmed prior to any site development plan 
approval, regardless of the proposed FLU change or use. 

Streets and Access.   
CP Policy MOB 1.1.1 Level of Service (LOS) Standards.  Levels of Service (LOS) will 
be used to evaluate facility capacity.  Escambia County will adopt LOS standards for all 
roadways as indicated in the LDC.  The standards for SIS facilities may be revised based 
on changes to the federal classification of these roadways.  These standards are not 
regulatory but provide a basis by which the County may monitor congestion and 
coordinate needed improvements with FDOT. 
Analysis: The parcel fronts Dog Track Road which is a Escambia County maintained 
road, classified as a major collect roadway.  Any new development will have to apply for 
review and approval thru the Development Review Committee.  
Transportation & Traffic Operations (TTO) Comments – LSA-2020-01 
 

TTO Staff has reviewed LSA-2020-02, 951 Dog Track Road. The requested 
Future land use change is from Commercial (C) to Mixed Use – Urban (MU-U) and is 



LSA 2019-05 – Amending the Comprehensive Plan, Chapter 7, 2030 FLU map. 
 

Page 4 of 7 

scheduled for the July 6, 2020 Planning Board Meeting. Please see the below 
comments. 

 
This segment of Dog Track Road has a two-lane typical section with two 12 foot 

travel lanes and a six foot wide path on the west side of the road.  Dog Track Road has 
an approximate right-of-way width of 100 feet.  The County does not have any proposed 
improvement projects scheduled for Dog Track Road in this area.   

 
Per the Florida-Alabama TPO’s Congestion Management Process Plan, Dog 

Track Road is classified as a major collector with a maximum LOS of D and a 
corresponding daily volume threshold of 17,700.  Near the subject property, the daily 
volume on Dog Track Road for 2019 was recorded as 6,400.   

 
TTO’s review is solely based off the application submittal packet, so the 

comments above hold no bearing on any future TTO comments during the Development 
Review process. 

Facilities.   
CP Policy ICE 1.3.1 Interlocal Agreement for Public School Facility Planning.  In 
cooperation with the School Board and the local governments within Escambia County, 
the County will implement the Interlocal Agreement for Public School Facility Planning 
(herein Interlocal Agreement) that establishes procedures for coordination and sharing 
of information, planning processes, and  implementation. 
Analysis: Based on the public records of Escambia County, the assigned schools that 
service this area are Blue Angels Elementary, Bailey Middle School and Escambia High 
School.  The applicant has requested a letter from the Escambia County School District 
Facilities Planning Director, stating that capacity for this project meets the School Level 
of Service requirements.  
Analysis of Suitability of Amendment for Proposed Use: 
The suitability of a Future Land Use map amendment for its proposed use requires an 
analysis of the characteristics of the site and its resources relative to Comprehensive 
Plan (CP) goals, objectives, and policies.  For these purposes, suitability is the degree 
to which the existing characteristics and limitations of land and water are compatible 
with the proposed use or development.  Compliance with specific regulations and 
standards established by Escambia County, including those for public facilities and 
services, are evaluated during the development review processes prescribed by the 
LDC for approval of proposed development. 

Impact on Land Use. 
CP Policy FLU 1.3.1 Future Land Use Categories.  General descriptions, range of 
allowable uses, and residential densities and non-residential intensities for all future land 
use categories in Escambia County are outlined in Table 1 [of the Escambia County 
Comprehensive Plan].  
 



LSA 2019-05 – Amending the Comprehensive Plan, Chapter 7, 2030 FLU map. 
 

Page 5 of 7 

Analysis:  
The referenced Comprehensive Plan table describes the current Commercial FLU as 
intended for professional office, retail, wholesale, service and general business trade. 
Residential development may be permitted only if secondary to a primary commercial 
development. MU-U FLU as intended for an intense mix of residential and non-
residential uses while promoting compatible infill development and the separation of 
urban and suburban land uses within the category. Residential density is limited to 25 
dwelling units per acre. If the amendment is approved the proposed Future Land Use to 
MU-U would be consistent with the existing zoning; there would be a decrease on the 
intensity of the development, but it would potentially accommodate a proposed 
residential development and mixed-use development that would be compatible with the 
surrounding uses.  

Impact on Wellheads. 
CP Policy CON 1.4.1 Wellhead Protection.  Escambia County will provide 
comprehensive wellhead protection from potential adverse impacts to current and future 
public water supplies. The provisions will establish specific wellhead protection areas 
and address incompatible land uses, including prohibited activities and materials, within 
those areas. 
Analysis: Based on the GIS wellhead protection areas layer, there are no wellhead 
protection areas within the parcel.  Any new development will have to submit for 
Development Review Process.   
Impact on Historically Significant Sites. 
 
CP Policy FLU 1.2.1 State Assistance.  Escambia County will utilize all available 
resources of the Florida Department of State, Division of Historical Resources in the 
identification of archeological and/or historic sites or structures within the County and will 
utilize guidance, direction, and technical assistance received from this agency. 
Analysis: The county did not receive a letter from the Historical Resources, Florida 
Master File. A request was made by the applicant. At the time of development review if 
any historic or archeological resources or structures are discovered, the county will 
request the appropriate guidance, direction, and technical assistance from the State, in 
accordance with current regulations. 

Impact on the Natural Environment. 
CP Policy CON 1.1.2 Wetland and Habitat Indicators.  Escambia County has 
adopted and will use the National Wetlands Inventory Map, the Escambia County Soils 
Survey, and the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission’s (FFWCC) 
LANDSAT imagery as indicators of the potential presence of wetlands or listed wildlife 
habitat in the review of applications for development approval.  
CP Policy CON 1.1.6 Habitat Protection. Escambia County will coordinate with the 
FDEP, FFWCC, and other state or federal agencies so as to provide the fullest 
protection to marine or wildlife habitats that may be impacted by existing or proposed 
development within the County. 



LSA 2019-05 – Amending the Comprehensive Plan, Chapter 7, 2030 FLU map. 
 

Page 6 of 7 

CP Policy CON 1.3.1 Stormwater Management. Escambia County will protect surface 
water quality by implementing the stormwater management policies of the Infrastructure 
Element to improve existing stormwater management systems and ensure the provision 
of stormwater management facilities concurrent with the demand for such facilities. 
CP Policy CON 1.3.6 Wetland Development Provisions. Development in wetlands will 
not be allowed unless sufficient uplands do not exist to avoid a taking.  In this case, 
development in wetlands will be restricted to allow residential density uses as indicated 
by the LDC: 
CP Policy CON 1.6.3 Tree Protection.  Escambia County will protect trees through 
LDC provisions. 
Analysis: The applicant stated that wetlands on-site have been identified and 
delineated. The applicant understands and will comply with the design and permitting 
processes requirements during the Site Plan Review process.  

Urban Sprawl 
CP Objective FLU 1.3 Future Land Use Map Designations.  Designate land uses on 
the FLUM to discourage urban sprawl, promote mixed use, compact development in 
urban areas, and support development compatible with the protection and preservation 
of rural areas.” 
Analysis: The proposed FLU amendment would promote mixed uses in the urban 
areas, with compatible development.   
 
CP Policy FLU 2.2.1 Location. Public facilities and services will be located to minimize 
their cost and negative impacts on the natural environment and maximize their 
efficiency. Cost alternatives, impacts on the environment, and levels of efficiency will be 
discussed during the design phase and bid process utilized by the County to accomplish 
the installation or location of public facilities and/or services. In addition, the County will 
coordinate with the ECUA, other water and/or sewer providers, and state or federal 
agencies with facilities located in the County or with plans to expand existing facilities or 
create new facilities in the County. Among other things, it is the intent of this policy that 
public facilities and services are available to support the densities and intensities of 
uses provided by this Plan and the FLUM and that there is adequate and suitable land 
available for such utility facilities. 
 
CP Policy FLU 2.2.4 Existing Facilities. Prior to embarking on the construction of new 
capital improvements, Escambia County will consider the feasibility of upgrading or 
rehabilitating existing facilities to determine if the rehabilitation of present facilities would 
be in the best interest of the County and its citizens. 
 
Analysis: The applicant has stated the development of the site would result in 
roadways that meet the Escambia County Engineering Manuals Specifications for 
roadways of which the rights-of-ways would be dedicated to Escambia County. There 
were no capacity letters from supporting agencies addressing the availability of public 
services. Any new proposed project will be required to meet the current regulations, as 



LSA 2019-05 – Amending the Comprehensive Plan, Chapter 7, 2030 FLU map. 
 

Page 7 of 7 

it relates to the availability of public services to support the requested densities and 
intensities.  
 



LEGAL REVIEW

(COUNTY DEPARTMENT USE ONLY)

Document: LSA Ordinance 2020-02

Date: 6/17/2020

Dale requested back by; 6/19/2020

John C Fisher
Requested by:

Phone Number:

(LEGAL USE ONLY)

Legal Review by

ived:Date Received

Approved as to fonn and legal sufficiency.

Not approved.

Make subject to legal signofT.

Additional comments:



1  ORDINANCE NUMBER 2020-
2

3  AN ORDINANCE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING
4  PART II OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES, THE

5  ESCAMBIA COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: 2030, AS AMENDED;
6  AMENDING CHAPTER 7, "THE FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT,"
7  POLICY FLU 1.1.1, TO PROVIDE FOR AN AMENDMENT TO THE 2030
8  FUTURE LAND USE MAP, CHANGING THE FUTURE LAND USE
9  CATEGORY OF A PARCEL, WHICH IS LOCATED WITHIN SECTION 25,
10 TOWNSHIP 2S, RANGE 31W, AND WHICH IS IDENTIFIED AS PARCEL
11 ID NUMBER 25-2S-31-1303-000-000 TOTALING 88.24(+/-) ACRES,
12 LOCATED ON DOG TRACK ROAD, FROM COMMERCIAL (C) TO MIXED
13 USE URBAN (MU-U); PROVIDING FOR A TITLE; PROVIDING FOR
14 SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; AND
15 PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.
16

17 WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 163, Part II, Florida Statutes, Escambia County adopted
18 its Comprehensive Plan on April 29, 2014; and
19

20 WHEREAS, Chapter 125, Florida Statutes, empowers the Board of County
21 Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida to prepare, amend and enforce
22 comprehensive plans for the development of the County; and
23

24 WHEREAS, the Escambia County Planning Board conducted a public hearing and
25 forwarded a recommendation to the Board of County Commissioners to consider changes
26 (amendments) to the Comprehensive Plan; and
27

28 WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida finds that
29 the adoption of this amendment is in the best interest of the County and its citizens;
30

31 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of County Commissioners of
32 Escambia County, Florida, as follows;
33

34 Section 1. Purpose and Intent
35

36 This Ordinance is enacted to carry out the purpose and intent of, and exercise the
37 authority set out in, the Community Planning Act, Sections 163.3161 through 163.3215,
38 Florida Statutes.

39

40 Section 2. Title of Comprehensive Plan Amendment
41

42 This Comprehensive Plan amendment shall be entitled - "Large Scale Amendment 2020-
43 02."

44

45 Section 3. Changes to the 2030 Future Land Use Map

BCC: 8-6-20

Re: LSA-2020-02 1



1

2  The 2030 Future Land Use Map, as adopted by reference and codified in Part II of the
3  Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Escambia County Comprehensive Plan: 2030,
4  as amended; Chapter?, "Future Land Use Element," Policy FLU 1.1.1; and all notations,
5  references and information shown thereon, is further amended to include the following
6  future land use changes:
7

8  (A) A parcel of land which is located within Section 25, Township 28, Range
9  31W, parcel number 25-28-31-1303-000-000 and totaling 88.24 (+/-) acres,
10 located on 951 Dog Track Road, as more particularly described in the
11 Boundary Survey produced by Merrill Parker Shaw, Inc., E. Wayne Parker,
12 a registered Florida land surveyor, dated 03/10/2010, attached as Exhibit
13 A, from Commercial (C) to Mixed-Use Urban (MU-U).
14

15 Section 4. Severabllity
16

17 If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid or
18 unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, the holding shall in no way affect
19 the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance.
20

21 Section 5. Inclusion in the Code

22

23 it is the intention of the Board of County Commissioners that the provisions of this
24 Ordinance shall be codified as required by Section 125.68, Florida Statutes, and that the
25 sections, subsections and other provisions of this Ordinance may be renumbered or
26 relettered and the word "ordinance" may be changed to "section," "article," or such other
27 appropriate word or phrase in order to accomplish such intentions.
28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35 THIS SPACE INTENTIONALLY BLANK

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

BCC: 8-6-20

Re: LSA-2020-02 2



1  Section 6. Effective Date

2

3  Pursuant to Section 163.3184(3)(c)(4), Florida Statutes, this Ordinance shall not become
4  effective until 31 days after the Department of Economic Opportunity notifies Escambia
5  County that the plan amendment package is complete. If timely challenged, this
6  Ordinance shall not become effective until the Department of Economic Opportunity or
7  the Administration Commission enters a final order determining the Ordinance to be in
8  compliance.
9

10 DONE AND ENACTED this day of , 2020.
11

12 BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

13 OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
14

15

16 By;
17 Steven Barry, Chairman
18 ATTEST: PAMCHILDERS

19 CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT

20

21

22 By: This document approved as to foi-ii
23 Deputy Clerk igggi sufficiency

By

26 Title
27 ENACTED: Date W
28 FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE:

29 EFFECTIVE DATE:

BCC: 8-6-20

Re: LSA-2020-02









   
Planning Board-Regular   6. D.           
Meeting Date: 07/06/2020  
Issue: A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending

Chapter 6, Definitions, Section 6-0.3 Terms Defined
From: HORACE JONES, Director 
Organization: Development Services

RECOMMENDATION:
A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending Chapter 6,
Definitions, Section 6-0.3 Terms Defined

That the Board review and recommend to the Board of County Commissioners (BCC) for
adoption, an Ordinance to the Land Development Code (LDC) amending the following
section to change the effective date for a lot of record from February 8, 1996 to April 16,
2015: Chapter 6, Definitions, Section 6-0.3 Terms Defined.

BACKGROUND:
In 2007, the BCC adopted an ordinance bringing the Lot of Record date to February 8,
1996, the date the original LDC became effective with the State. In 2015, the current
LDC was adopted with new, consolidated zoning districts, and the Property Appraiser’s
office began requiring zoning sign off to split or join existing parcels. These changes
have effectively ended the creation of nonconforming parcels but those created from
1996-2015 still exist.

Updating the Lot of Record date will remedy most of these nonconforming parcels and
allow for analysis of data, something the current static Lot of Record maps cannot.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
No budgetary impact is anticipated by the adoption of this Ordinance.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The attached Ordinance has been reviewed and approved for legal sufficiency by Kia M.
Johnson, Assistant County Attorney. Any recommended legal comments are attached
herein.

PERSONNEL:
No additional personnel are required for implementation of this Ordinance.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:



The proposed Ordinance is consistent with the Board’s goal “to increase citizen
involvement in, access to, and approval of, County government activities.”

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
This Ordinance, amending the LDC, will be filed with the Department of State following
adoption by the board.

Implementation of this Ordinance will consist of an amendment to the LDC and
distribution of a copy of the adopted Ordinance to interested citizens and staff.

The proposed Ordinance was prepared by the Development Services Department, in
cooperation with  the County Attorney’s Office and all interested citizens. The
Development Services Department will ensure proper advertisement.

Attachments
Draft Ordinance



I.F.GALRF.VIEW

(COUNTY DEPARTMENT USE ONLY)

r, , Lotof Record Ordinance
Documeni:

Dale: 06/29/2020

ASAP
Date requested back by:

Andrew Holmer
Requested by:

.  595-3466
Phone Number:

illlilii

(LEGAL USE ONLY)

Legal Review by

Date Received:

Approved as to form and legal sufficiency.

Not approved.

Make subject to legal signoff.

Additional comments:



1  ORDINANCE NUMBER 2020-

2  AN ORDINANCE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING

3  PART III OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES, THE

4  LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AS

5  AMENDED, AMENDING THE FOLLOWING SECTION TO CHANGE THE

6  EFFECTIVE DATE FOR A LOT OF RECORD FROM FEBRUARY 8,1996

7  TO APRIL 16, 2015: CHAPTER 6, DEFINITIONS, SECTION 6-0.3

a  "TERMS DEFINED"; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING

9  FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE

10 DATE.

11 WHEREAS, the Legislature of the State of Florida has, in Chapter 125, Florida
12 Statutes, conferred upon local governments the authority to adopt regulations designed

13 to promote the public health, safety, and general welfare of its citizenry: and

14 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of County Commissioners

15 of Escambia County that the following regulation is hereby adopted.

16 Section 1. Part III of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Land Development

17 Code of Escambia County, Chapter 6 DEFINITIONS, Section 6-0.3 "TERMS DEFINED"

18 is hereby amended as follows (words underlined are additions and words stricken are

19 deletions);

20 Sec. 6-0.3 Terms defined.

21 Lot of record. A lot that is part of a subdivision that has been recorded in the official

22 records of Escambia County, or a lot or parcel described by metes and bounds, and the

23 description of which has been so recorded or accepted on or before February 8, 1996

24 April 16. 2015. A lot of record does not include contiguous multiple lots under single

25 ownership.

26 Section 2. Severablllty.

27 If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is held to be invalid or

28 unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, the holding shall in no way affect the

29 validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance.

30 Section 3. Inclusion In the code.

31 The Board of County Commissioners intends that the provisions of this ordinance
32 will be codified as required by Section 125.68, Florida Statutes (2018), and that the

PB:7-6-20 Page 1
Re: Lot of Record

DRAFT 2



1  sections of this ordinance may be renumbered or relettered and the word "ordinance" may

2  be changed to "section." "article," or such other appropriate word of phrase in order to

3  accomplish Its intentions.

4  Section 4. Effective date.

5  This ordinance shall become effective upon filling with the Department of State.

6  DONE AND ENACTED this day of , 2020.

7  BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

8  OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
9

10

11 By:
12 Steven Barry, Chairman
13

14 ATTEST: RAM CHILDERS

15 CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT Thjg document approved as to form
and legal sufficiency.

18 Bv —
19 Deputy Clerk
20 Date
21 (SEAL)
22

23

24 ENACTED:

25 FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE:

26 EFFECTIVE DATE:

PB:7-6-20 Page 2
Re: Lot of Record

DRAFT 2



   
Planning Board-Regular   7. A.           
Meeting Date: 07/06/2020  
Issue: Recommendation Concerning the Review of the Comprehensive Plan Annual

Report 2018/2019
From: HORACE JONES, Director 
Organization: Development Services

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Review of the Comprehensive Plan Annual Report 2018/2019

That the Board review and recommend approval to the Board of County Commissioners
(BCC) the 2018/2019 Comprehensive Plan Annual Report.

BACKGROUND:
As required by the Comprehensive Plan Capital Improvement Element, the
Comprehensive Plan Implementation Committee (CPIC) provides an annual report of the
status of growth management activities and the Capital Improvement Program (CIP) to
the Planning Board. The Planning Board reviews the report and makes
recommendations to the BCC for use during its deliberations on the annual budget and
CIP.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
No budgetary impact is anticipated by the approval of this report.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
No additional personnel are required for implementation of this report.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
This Annual Report is prepared in accordance with the requirements contained in
various sections of the Escambia County Comprehensive Plan.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
The Development Services Department will distribute copies to all County Departments



The Development Services Department will distribute copies to all County Departments
and make them available to interested citizens, after BCC approval.

Development Services Department staff has coordinated development of the Annual
report with all CPIC members.

Attachments
Comp Plan Annual report 2018-2019



1 | P a g e  
 

Escambia County Comprehensive Plan 

Implementation Annual Report 2018/2019 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
A Report of the Comprehensive Plan Implementation Committee and the Planning 
Board to the Escambia County Board of County Commissioners 
 
June 22, 2020 



2 | P a g e  
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

This Annual Report has been prepared in accordance with the requirements contained 
in various sections of the Escambia County Comprehensive Plan, which requires 
reporting of certain data and information related to growth on an annual basis. 
 
The purpose and intent of the Annual Report is to provide a yearly planning tool for 
monitoring and evaluating future implementation of the Escambia County 
Comprehensive Plan. The Comprehensive Plan contains policies and objectives 
adopted by the Board of County Commissioners to provide for “orderly growth 
management” and to “maintain and improve the quality of life for all citizens of the 
county.” 
 
The Board of County Commissioners (BCC) adopted the 2030 Comprehensive Plan on 
February 2015 and the Florida Legislature adopted changes to Chapter 163 Florida 
Administrative Code in July, 2011. 
 
As a result of the adopted 2030 Comprehensive Plan the following elements were to be 
included within the Comprehensive Plan Annual Report for 2018/2019: 
 
General Requirements- Mobility Element, Housing Element, Coastal Management 
Element and Intergovernmental Coordination. 
 

This report was prepared by the Development Services Department. 

 
  



3 | P a g e  
 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN IMPLEMENTATION COMMITTEE MEMBERS 
 
 

JANICE P. GILLEY, County Administrator 

WESLEY HALL, Assistant County Administrator, (Community and Administrative) 

J. TAYLOR “CHIPS” KIRSCENFELD, Deputy County Administrator, (Natural Resources 

Management Director) 

DEBBIE BOWERS, Assistant County Administrator, (Infrastructure and Public Safety) 

WES MORENO, Deputy County Administrator, (Public Works/Road Department 

Director) 

HORACE L. JONES, Development Services Director 

JOY JONES, P.E., Engineering Director 

SHARON HARRELL, Interim Budget Manager, Budget Office 

JASON ROGERS, Public Safety Director 

PAUL WILLIAMS, Interim Fire Chief 

RICH POWELL, Chief Corrections Officer/Director 

PAOLO GHIO, Executive Director/Director of Environmental and Developmental 

Services, Santa Rosa Island Authority 

 

Annual Report Prepared By: Development Services Department 

ALLYSON LINDSAY, Urban Planner II 

CALEB MACCARTEE, Urban Planner II 

JOHN FISHER, Senior Planner 

JUAN LEMOS, Senior Planner 

  



4 | P a g e  
 

TABLE OF CONTENT 
 
1.0 MOBILITY ELEMENT 
 
Interlocal Agreement.......................................................................5 
 
Infrastructure Impact Report........................................................... 5 
 
Annual Assessment........................................................................ 5-6 
 
2.0 HOUSING 
 
Neighborhood Enterprise Foundation............................................ 7-8 
 
3.0 COASTAL MANAGEMENT ELEMENT 
 
Development Impact Analysis.......................................................9 
 
Intergovernmental Task Force...................................................... 9 
 
Beach and Shoreline Regulations................................................ 10 
 
Population Projections....................................................................11 
 
4.0 INTERGOVENMENTAL COORDINATION 
 

Growth and Development Trends.................................................12-13 

  



5 | P a g e  
 

1.0 MOBILITY ELEMENT  
 

MOB 4.2.3 Interlocal Agreement.  An interlocal agreement to determine the details of 
the coordination between the Navy and Escambia County shall include, but not be 
limited to, the individual responsibilities of the County and the Navy;  the method by 
which the navy will appoint a Planning Board representative; the length of the term of 
appointment; the details of the coordination required to produce, receive and transmit 
any Navy comments to the State; establish who will be responsible for forwarding the 
comments; the method by which the Navy will apprise the County of any available 
grants and the details to be reported on the Annual Report on Comprehensive Plan 
Implementation.  The Military Interlocal Agreement became effective September 2003. 
 
The Interlocal agreement was reviewed for compliance and approved by the County 
Administrator and current Board of County Commissioners in December 2015. All joint 
projects that will be addressed by the County and the Navy will meet the requirements 
of the Interlocal agreement.  The Navy’s representative continues to participate in the 
decision-making process of the Planning Board.   
 
MOB 4.2.7 Infrastructure Impact Report. A formal information exchange between the 
County, FDOT, Emerald Coast Utilities Authority (ECUA), and other utility service 
providers in the area will be established to explore the growth-inducing impacts of utility 
expansion and infrastructure improvements within the AIPD overlay areas in relation to 
the JLUS recommendations. Annual reporting of the status of the planned utility 
expansion and infrastructure improvements will be included in the Comprehensive Plan 
Implementation Annual Report. 
 
The calculations used during this reporting period with the AIPD Overlay Areas will be 
used as the baseline figures to track utility and infrastructure improvements in future 
reports. 
 
MOB 4.2.8 Annual Assessment. Pursuant to Florida Statutes and beginning in Fiscal 
Year 2004/2005, the County will conduct an annual assessment of the effectiveness of 
the criteria adopted pursuant to Florida Statutes, in achieving compatibility with military 
installations in areas designated as AIPDs. This assessment will be based on a 
compilation of data for the calendar year and will compare the current year’s 
development with the previous years’ development relevant to the following in each 
AIPD: 
 
a. Single-family residential building permits in each AIPD area based on the number of 
permits issued and broken down by APZ and AIPD area. 
 
b. Number of residential units (high density) approved and permitted. 
 
c. Extension of sewer and water lines in the AIPD Overlay areas as reported by ECUA 
(or relevant potable water distributors). 



6 | P a g e  
 

 
d. Number of units approved in preliminary and final subdivision plats. 
 
e. Number of site plans for commercial projects approved. 
 
f. Number of communication towers approved. 
 
g. Number of variances and/or conditional use requests and approvals. 
 
h. Number of rezoning requests/approvals. 
 
i. Number of future land use amendments. 
 
The intent is to measure the increase or decrease in residential development activity 
within the AIPDs to determine the effectiveness of the measures adopted to control 
residential density and encourage commercial development, as recommended by the 
JLUS. The County will review the collected data to ensure compliance with the intent of 
the JLUS recommendations. In addition, an analysis of the collected data over a period 
of time will assist in determining what future changes may be required to enhance or 
improve the County’s efforts to control encroachment on the military installations. The 
reports will be included in the Annual Comprehensive Plan Implementation Report and 
will be further analyzed for inclusion in the Evaluation and Appraisal of the 
Comprehensive Plan required every seven years. 
  

P
la

n
n

in
g

 

D
is

tr
ic

t 

 

Z
o

n
e
 

 

T
o

ta
l 
D

w
e
ll
in

g
 

U
n

it
s
 A

p
p

ro
v

e
d

 

in
 P

re
li
m

 P
la

ts
 

T
o

ta
l 
D

w
e
ll
in

g
 

U
n

it
s
 A

p
p

ro
v

e
d

 

In
 F

in
a
l 
P

la
ts

 

C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 

S
it

e
 

P
la

n
s

 A
p

p
ro

v
e
d

 

R
e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
B

ld
g

. 

P
la

n
s

 A
p

p
ro

v
e
d

 

R
e
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
S

it
e
 

P
la

n
s

 A
p

p
ro

v
e
d

 

C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 

T
o

w
e
rs

 

A
p

p
ro

v
e
d

 

V
a
ri

a
n

c
e

s
 

C
o

n
d

it
io

n
a
l 
U

s
e

 

R
e
z
o

n
e
 A

p
p

ro
v

a
l 

F
u

tu
re

 L
a
n

d
 U

s
e

 

A
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

t 
AIPD-1 N/A 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

AIPD-1 AREA 
A 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

AIPD-1 AREA 
B 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

AIPD-1 APZ-1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

AIPD-1 APZ-1 
NASP 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

AIPD-1 APZ-2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

AIPD-1 APZ-2 
NASP 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

AIPD-1 CZ 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

AIPD-2  0 294 3 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 



7 | P a g e  
 

2.0 HOUSING ELEMENT 

 
HOU 1.6.1 Program Information. Escambia County will continue its housing outreach 
program to assure dissemination of housing information. 
 
HOU 1.6.5 State and Federal Assistance. Escambia County will participate in 
affordable housing programs as made available by the state, federal, or other 
appropriate agencies. 
 
HOU 1.6.6 Neighborhood Enterprise Division. Escambia County will provide 
affordable homeownership and home repair assistance opportunities for moderate, low, 
and very low-income homebuyers and homeowners. 
 
HOU 1.6.7 SHIP Fund Initiatives. Escambia County will use State Housing Initiatives 
Partnership (SHIP) Program funds to expand and/or enhance ongoing activities 
designed to develop new affordable housing initiatives conforming to the statutory 
requirements of Florida 
Statutes. 
 

Escambia County and the City of Pensacola jointly participate in the State Housing 

Initiatives Partnership Program under an interlocal agreement, and formation of the 

AHAC is mandatory under Section 420.9076, F.S. The SHIP Interlocal provides for the 

City of Pensacola to solicit and appoint a representative from the City of Pensacola 

Planning Board and a citizen that resides in the City of Pensacola. All other appointees 

will be solicited through the County. All appointments will be jointly approved by the 

BCC and PCC. 

The Neighborhood Enterprise Division seeks to increase the supply of affordable 

housing through a variety of rental and homeownership programs for the community’s 

low- and moderate-income residents, as well as encourage neighborhood and housing 

sustainability through the preservation and rehabilitation of existing housing stock. 

 

NED provides the administrative, fiscal and technical support required to plan, design 

and deliver quality housing, community development and related services. The division 

is responsible for programs such as the Neighborhood Renewal Initiative Grant 

Program, Homebuyer Programs and Homeowner Repair Programs. 

Escambia County and the city of Pensacola jointly administer the State Housing 

Initiatives Partnership, or SHIP, program. This program provides first-time homebuyers 

loans of up to $7,500 for income eligible borrowers for down payment and closing cost 

assistance. Assistance is provided in the form of a five-year forgivable loan, provided 

that the buyer does not sell, rent, or transfer within that time frame and retains the 

https://myescambia.com/our-services/neighborhood-human-services/neighborhood-enterprise/neighborhood-renewal-initiative-grant-program
https://myescambia.com/our-services/neighborhood-human-services/neighborhood-enterprise/neighborhood-renewal-initiative-grant-program
https://myescambia.com/our-services/neighborhood-human-services/neighborhood-enterprise/homebuyer-programs
https://myescambia.com/our-services/neighborhood-human-services/neighborhood-enterprise/homeowner-repair-programs


8 | P a g e  
 

property as principal residence. Maximum sales price is $189,000. Funding is available 

on a first qualified, first served basis. For more information, call 850-858-0350. 

  



9 | P a g e  
 

OBJ COA 1.3 Population Evacuation  

 

COA 1.3.8 Development Impact Analysis. The Comprehensive Plan Implementation 

Annual Report will include an analysis of proposed and new developments’ impact on 

hurricane evacuation times. The BCC, upon receipt of the report from the LPA, will 

address any deficiencies identified in the report and take corrective measures, as 

necessary. The report and recommendations will consider the actual development that 

has occurred during the evaluation period (preceding 12 months) as well as the 

projected development anticipated to be approved during the succeeding evaluation 

period. The needed corrective actions by the BCC will maintain or reduce the County’s 

adopted roadway clearance time. 

The Florida Division of Emergency Management, Division of Community Planning and 

Department of Transportation, in coordination with the WCRC, have developed the 

Florida Statewide Regional Evacuation Study Program for the West Florida Region. 

This report updates the region’s evacuation population estimates, evacuation clearance 

times and public shelter demands. Originally released on October 5, 2010, the study 

covers Bay, Escambia, Holmes, Okaloosa, Santa Rosa, Walton and Washington 

counties and their respective municipalities, and is updated as needed. There is multiple 

County and State transportation projects that consider the State mandated evacuation 

times, as part of their development, based on the established regional evacuation 

modeling process. In coordination between Emergency Management, Traffic and 

Development Services departments, the County strives to maintain pre-established 

roadway clearing times for evacuation. A copy of the Evacuation Study can be viewed in 

its entirety at this location: 

https://www.ecrc.org/programs/community_and_economic_development/emergency_pl

anning/index.php 

COA 1.4.6 Intergovernmental Task Force. An Intergovernmental Task Force, as 

outlined in the Post Disaster Redevelopment Plan, will foster cooperation between local 

governments during pre-disaster planning, post-disaster mitigation analysis, and 

redevelopment. Additionally, the task force will be activated and mobilized for a 

minimum of 60 days following a disaster declaration. The task force will make 

recommendations concerning pre-disaster planning, post-disaster mitigation analysis, 

and redevelopment for inclusion in the Comprehensive Plan Implementation Annual 

Report of every fiscal year during which it was mobilized. 

 

Projects related to the April 29, 2014 Flood Event Escambia County has worked on are 

as follows: 

https://www.ecrc.org/programs/community_and_economic_development/emergency_planning/index.php
https://www.ecrc.org/programs/community_and_economic_development/emergency_planning/index.php


10 | P a g e  
 

86 completed out of 86 - FEMA Projects (# Project Worksheets – Federal Emergency 

Management Agency); 1 FEMA project is still active. 

1 of the 6 are ongoing- HMGP Projects (Hazard Mitigation Grant Program) were 

awarded by FDEM for FEMA grant are active ongoing projects.  

Two (2) of the HMGP projects were withdrawn due to acquisition failure.  

Two (2) of the HMGP projects are complete. 

One (1) HMGP is a Global Match Project utilized to leverage as match funding is 

complete.  

One (1) HMGP is awaiting grant approval to initiate the construction phase. 

19 of 19 projects completed - FHWA/FDOT Projects (Florida Highway Administration / 

Florida Department of Transportation. 

7 out of 7 completed- NRCS (Natural Resource Conservation Service) Emergency 

Watershed Protection Projects.  

A drainage needs assessment list was also developed following the April 2014 storm 

event, of which currently includes 260 identified drainage projects, with 11 completed, 

15 in design, and 2 under construction, as of May 2020. 

 

OBJ COA 2.3 Beach and Dune Protection 

 

COA 2.3.3 Beach and Shoreline Regulations. Escambia County will protect beach 

and shoreline systems. These regulating provisions will be reviewed annually for the 

Comprehensive Plan Implementation Annual Report and updated as necessary to 

address concerns and issues including, but not limited to, the following: 

a. "White Sand" regulations. 

b. Shoreline protection zone. 

c. CCCL-related regulations. 

d. Dune replenishment, enhancement, and re-vegetation programs. 

e. Wetland and environmentally sensitive area regulations. 

 

The regulating provisions have been reviewed by the environmental staff and no 

updates were necessary. The most recent update, in 2005, established the 1975 Costal 

Construction Control Line (CCCL) as Shoreline Protection Zone 1 for construction on 

the south side of the Barrier Islands, fronting the Gulf of Mexico. There are numerous 

beach and shoreline projects aimed at the protection and enhancement of our natural 

resources. 



11 | P a g e  
 

Chapter 5 General Requirements. 

Section 5.06 Population projections. 
 
This ordinance is based upon permanent and seasonal population estimates and 
projections, which must either be those provided by the University of Florida’s Bureau of 
Economic and Business Research or generated by the local government based upon a 
professionally acceptable methodology. Population projections will be updated annually 
with the most current projections available. 

 

2020–2045 Estimates for April 2019, Population 321,134 

 

RANGE 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045 

LOW 314,100 319,200 321,500 322,100 321,800 321,600 

MEDIUM 324,000 336,400 345,800 353,000 359,300 365,200 

HIGH 333,600 354,800 374,200 389,700 404,100 418,200 

 

https://www.bebr.ufl.edu/sites/default/files/Research%20Reports/projections_2020.pdf 

  

https://www.bebr.ufl.edu/sites/default/files/Research%20Reports/projections_2020.pdf


12 | P a g e  
 

4.0 INTERGOVENMENTAL COORDINATION 

 
ICE 1.3.4 Growth and Development Trends. As per the Interlocal Agreement, the 
local governments will provide the School Board with their Comprehensive Plan 
Implementation Committee Annual Report on growth and development trends within 
their jurisdiction. To the extent feasible, the reports should be provided in a geographic 
information system-compatible format for the purpose of geo-referencing the 
information. 
 
This report will be in tabular, graphic, and textual formats and will include data and 
summaries as requested by the LPA. 
 

Growth & Development Trends FY 2018/2019 
 

Planning Board Case by Type Number of Cases 

Small-Scale Map Amendments 3 

Large-Scale Map Amendments  2 

LDC Amendments  4 

Comp Plan Amendments 1 

Planned Unit Development PUD  1 

Rezoning Cases 14 

Vested Rights 2 

Opt Out 0 

PUD 1 

Total Number of Planning Board 
Cases 

28 

 
 
 

DRC PROJECTS FISCAL YEAR Oct 2018-Sept 30, 2019 

 

Type of Projects Number of Projects 

Final Plat 17 

Minor Subdivisions 7 

Masterplans 4 

Construction Plans 3 

Preliminary Plat 7 

Preliminary Plat/Construction Plan 13 

Major Site Plans  63 

Minor Site Plans 26 

Borrow Pits 1 

Total Number of DRC Projects 141 



13 | P a g e  
 

 

Escambia County Board of Adjustment Cases 

(October 1, 2018 – September 30. 2019) 

 

CASE TYPE Number of 
Cases 

Administrative Appeals 1 

Conditional Uses 14 

Extensions to Development Orders 0 

Variances 4 

Total Number of Cases 19 

 

 

 



   
Planning Board-Regular   7. B.           
Meeting Date: 07/06/2020  

Agenda Item:
RVs Allowed for Living in District 5 Where Mobile Homes are Allowed Discussion.

Attachments
Draft Ordinance



 

PB: 07-06-20 Page 1 
Re: RV use 
Discussion Draft 
 

Planning Board 7-6-20 meeting discussion item 1 

Draft of proposed recreational vehicle LDC provisions  2 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2020-_______ 3 

AN ORDINANCE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING 4 
PART III OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES, THE 5 
LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AS 6 
AMENDED, AMENDING CHAPTER 4, SECTION 4-7.9 “OUTDOOR 7 
STORAGE,” TO REMOVE REQUIRED ON-PREMISES OWNER 8 
RESIDENCE FOR A RECREATIONAL VEHICLE STORED ACCESSORY 9 
TO A DWELLING; AND AMENDING SECTION 4-7.10 “RECREATIONAL 10 
VEHICLES,” TO EXPAND THE USE OF RECREATIONAL VEHICLES AS 11 
LIVING QUARTERS AND ESTABLISH RELATED USE STANDARDS; 12 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN 13 
THE CODE; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 14 

 WHEREAS, the Legislature of the State of Florida has, in Chapter 125, Florida 15 
Statutes, conferred upon local governments the authority to adopt regulations designed 16 
to promote the public health, safety, and general welfare of its citizenry; and, 17 

 WHEREAS, recreational vehicles are not dwelling units but can, nonetheless, 18 
provide useful temporary living quarters beyond their primary recreational, camping, and 19 
travel uses; and, 20 

 WHEREAS, the use of recreational vehicles as living quarters outside of duly 21 
licensed campgrounds, recreational vehicle parks, or mobile home parks requires land 22 
use standards to protect the public health, safety, and general welfare; 23 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of County Commissioners 24 
of Escambia County that the following regulation is hereby adopted. 25 

Section 1. Part III of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Land Development 26 
Code of Escambia County, Chapter 4, Location and Use Regulations, Section 4-7.9, 27 
Outdoor storage, is hereby amended as follows (words underlined are additions and 28 
words stricken are deletions):  29 

Sec. 4-7.9 Outdoor storage. 30 
 General. Where the LDC allows any outdoor storage of equipment, goods, junk, 31 
material, or merchandise, the storage shall comply with the regulations of this section 32 
unless specifically identified in the LDC as exempt from these regulations.  The 33 



 

PB: 07-06-20 Page 2 
Re: RV use 
Discussion Draft 
 

regulations are intended to allow outdoor storage, including retail display, while assuring 1 
it is not a hazard to public health and safety, does not have a depreciating effect on 2 
adjacent property values, and does not create nuisance conditions.  Unless specifically 3 
identified as a principal use, outdoor storage in all zoning districts is limited to items 4 
accessory (subordinate and incidental) to a permitted principal use on the same parcel, 5 
and complying with the provisions of this section. 6 
(a) Exemptions.  The following storage is exempt from the regulations of this section: 7 

Construction and landscaping.  Construction and landscaping materials and 8 
equipment incidental to ongoing construction or landscaping activities within the 9 
parcel on which the materials and equipment are stored. 10 

(b) Residential uses.  Outdoor storage for all residential uses is limited to items 11 
accessory to the use of a dwelling, on the lot occupied by the dwelling, and 12 
complying with the following conditions: 13 
(1) Rear or side yard storage of firewood for the purpose of consumption only by 14 

those residing on the premises. 15 
(2) Recreational vehicle storage if the vehicle is the property of a person residing on 16 

the premises, is licensed and operable, and is stored no closer than five feet from 17 
a side or rear lot line.  Additionally, such stored vehicles shall not encroach on a 18 
public right-of-way or public sidewalk. 19 

(3) Items not intended for outdoor use or storage shall not be stored outdoors 20 
regardless of resistance to deterioration by the elements. 21 

(c) Retail display.  Outdoor retail display shall comply with the following standards: 22 
(1) Accessory.  The display shall be accessory to a permitted retail use on the 23 

same parcel. 24 
(2) Access.  The display shall not be located where it will interfere with any required 25 

vehicular or pedestrian access, including access to public rights-of-way, parking 26 
stalls, loading zones, driveways, drive aisles, fire lanes, hydrants, alarms, 27 
emergency exits, or sidewalks.  Additionally, displays shall not interfere with any 28 
sight visibility triangles prescribed in Chapter 5, or any utilities, services or 29 
drainage systems. 30 

(3) Order.  Items displayed shall be maintained in a neat and orderly manner. 31 
(4) Height.  The height of items displayed shall not exceed the height of any 32 

required screening. 33 
(5) Condition of approval.  The location of permissible display area shall be 34 

established as a condition of any applicable county approval for a retail use. 35 
36 



 

PB: 07-06-20 Page 3 
Re: RV use 
Discussion Draft 
 

To regulate outdoor storage and determine the proper screening requirements for such 1 
storage, the following storage categories and standards are established: 2 
Class Description for Outdoor Storage 
Class 1 • Construction materials on active construction sites. 
Class 2 • Live plants not displayed for sale. 

• Goods incidental to agriculture or the provision of agricultural services. 
Class 3 • Vehicles, including recreational, trailers, construction, and watercraft, 

at dealerships or a mini-warehouse. 
• Retail funerary sales. 

Class 4 • Items outdoors during business hours. 
Class 5 • Vehicles including recreational, trailers, construction, and watercraft 

excluding vehicles located at residences.  
• Hazardous or toxic substances 
• The storage, sale, dismantling, or other processing of used or waste 

goods or materials that are not intended for reuse in their original 
forms.  

• Materials or equipment.   
• Storage of vehicles or equipment for maintenance, repair, or servicing.   
• Raw or finished materials incidental to manufacture, processing, 

fabrication, assembly, treatment, and packaging of products. 
• The storage incidental to offices or administrative, clerical, or public 

contact services, together with incidental storage and maintenance of 
necessary vehicles. 

 3 
(A) 
Standard 

(B) 
Class 1 

(C) 
Class 2 

(D) 
Class 3 

(E) 
Class 4 

(F) 
Class 5 

Yard or driveway. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Rear yard unless the area is screened in 
accordance with LDC Section 7.01.06.E. 

  
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Standard A-2 buffer is required where 
abutting any residential district. 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Screened in accordance with LDC 
Section 7.01.06.E. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Section 2. Part III of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Land Development 4 
Code of Escambia County, Chapter 4, Location and Use Regulations, Section 4-7.10, 5 
Recreational vehicles, is hereby amended as follows (words underlined are additions and 6 
words stricken are deletions): 7 



 

PB: 07-06-20 Page 4 
Re: RV use 
Discussion Draft 
 

Sec. 4-7.10 Recreational vehicles. 1 
Recreational vehicles are designed primarily as temporary living quarters for 2 
recreational, camping, or travel use.  Except under the disaster recovery temporary use 3 
provisions of this chapter, the use of a recreational vehicle as living quarters for more 4 
than 14 days in any calendar year is prohibited except in duly licensed campgrounds or 5 
mobile home parks.  All recreational vehicles located in residential districts, except for 6 
those being stored and not occupied and located on the same lot with the principal 7 
structure, shall be removed within 60 days from notification. 8 
Recreational vehicles (RVs), as defined in Chapter 6, are designed primarily as 9 
temporary living quarters for recreational, camping, or travel use.  The use and outdoor 10 
storage of RVs is limited by the following: 11 

(1) Outdoor storage.  The outdoor storage of an unoccupied RV is allowed 12 
accessory to a residential dwelling as authorized conditionally by the outdoor 13 
storage section of this article.  For all other land uses, outdoor RV storage is 14 
limited to that specifically authorized by the applicable zoning district.  No RV 15 
storage is authorized to encroach on a public right-of-way or access easement. 16 

(2) Living Quarters.  The use of a RV as living quarters for more than 14 days in 17 
any calendar year is prohibited outside of duly licensed campgrounds, RV parks, 18 
or mobile home parks, except as specifically authorized herein.  Use of a RV as 19 
living quarters for any period requires authorization of the landowner and 20 
compliance with the following as applicable: 21 
a. Short-term use.  In any zoning district, short-term use (no more than 14 days 22 

in any calendar year) of a single RV as living quarters outside of a duly 23 
licensed campground, RV park, or mobile home park may be authorized on a 24 
parcel by land use certificate, provided the RV complies with the use 25 
standards of this section and remains fully licensed and ready for highway 26 
use.  Such readiness requires that the RV be on wheels or a jacking system, 27 
be attached to the site only by quick-disconnect type utilities and security 28 
devices, and have no permanent attachments such as additions, rooms, 29 
stairs, decks or porches. 30 

b. Use within District 5.  For any parcel within the established limits of BCC 31 
commissioner District 5, RV use as living quarters for more than 14 days in a 32 
calendar year may be authorized on the parcel by land use certificate, 33 
provided the parcel and RV placement comply with the following conditions in 34 
addition to the RV use standards of this section: 35 
1. Manufactured home use.  The zoning of the parcel specifically includes 36 

individual manufactured (mobile) homes among the permitted residential 37 
uses of the district. 38 

2. Not platted.  The parcel is not within a platted subdivision. 39 
3. Lot of record.  The parcel is a lot of record as defined in Chapter 6. 40 
4. One per parcel.  The RV is the only RV occupied as living quarters on the 41 

parcel. 42 



 

PB: 07-06-20 Page 5 
Re: RV use 
Discussion Draft 
 

5. One per owner.  The RV is the only RV occupied as living quarters on 1 
any contiguous parcels (those sharing any boundary point in common) 2 
having the same owner of record. 3 

6. No hazard areas.  The RV is not placed within a FEMA designated 4 
Special Flood Hazard Area, a state designated Coastal High-hazard Area, 5 
or a county designated Evacuation Zone A, B, or C. 6 

c. Use during dwelling construction.  For any parcel where a building permit 7 
has been issued for the construction of a single-family dwelling as the 8 
principal structure on the parcel, the use of a single RV as temporary living 9 
quarters may be authorized on the parcel by land use certificate, but only for 10 
use while the permit is valid and the dwelling is under construction.  RV 11 
placement shall comply with accessory structure setbacks to the extent 12 
practical.  After a certificate of occupancy is issued for the new dwelling or 13 
other conclusion of the permit, the RV use is no longer authorized.  Any 14 
subsequent use or storage of the RV on the parcel is subject to the applicable 15 
provisions of this section and may require reauthorization, relocation, or 16 
disconnection of utility services. 17 

d. Use for disaster recovery.  If a natural or man-made disaster requires 18 
temporary housing to facilitate repair or replacement of a damaged structure, 19 
a RV may be allowed to provide the disaster recovery housing as authorized 20 
conditionally by the temporary uses and structures section of this article.  21 

e. Standards for use.  Any RV use as living quarters on a parcel outside of a 22 
duly licensed campground, RV park, or mobile home park shall comply with 23 
the following standards: 24 
1. Authorization.  Any individual authorization (e.g., land use certificate) of 25 

RV use on the parcel is maintained on the parcel to be available on 26 
request by county code enforcement officers. 27 

2. Setbacks.  The RV placement complies with the parcel boundary 28 
setbacks applicable to a principal structure on the parcel, except as may 29 
be authorized for disaster recovery or use during dwelling construction. 30 

3. Utilities.  If the RV requires the installation of site utilities, they are 31 
obtained through applicable land use approval and building permits (e.g., 32 
electrical, plumbing). 33 

4. Site preparation.  If the RV site requires clearing or driveway connection, 34 
applicable permits for the activities are obtained (e.g. land disturbance, 35 
tree removal, driveway).  For tree removal, RVs are not separately eligible 36 
for any protected tree exemptions available to single-family dwellings. 37 

5. Waste.  All sewage and other liquid waste from the RV are discharged 38 
directly into a sewage treatment and disposal system or other manner of 39 
collection and disposal specified and approved for such waste by the 40 
Florida Department of Health.  All solid waste is contained and disposed of 41 
in compliance with county ordinances. 42 

 43 



 

PB: 07-06-20 Page 6 
Re: RV use 
Discussion Draft 
 

Section 3. Severability. 1 

 If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is held to be invalid or 2 
unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, the holding shall in no way affect the 3 
validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance. 4 

Section 4. Inclusion in the code. 5 

The Board of County Commissioners intends that the provisions of this ordinance 6 
will be codified as required by Section 125.68, Florida Statutes (2018), and that the 7 
sections of this ordinance may be renumbered or relettered and the word “ordinance” may 8 
be changed to “section,” “article,” or such other appropriate word of phrase in order to 9 
accomplish its intentions.  10 

Section 5. Effective date. 11 

This ordinance shall become effective upon filling with the Department of State.  12 

DONE AND ENACTED this ____ day of ________________________, 2020.  13 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 14 
      ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 15 

By:  _________________________________ 16 
ATTEST:  Pam Childers    , Chairman 17 
Clerk of the Circuit Court 18 
 19 

By:  ___________________________ Date Executed:  ________________________ 20 

  Deputy Clerk 21 

 22 

(SEAL) 23 
 24 
ENACTED: 25 
 26 
FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE: 27 
 28 
EFFECTIVE DATE:  29 



   
Planning Board-Regular   7. C.           
Meeting Date: 07/06/2020  

Agenda Item:
Tiny Homes Discussion.

Attachments
Powerpoint



TINY HOMED 
DEVELOPMENT 

(THD)

PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION
7-6-2020

1

http://www.escpa.org/Default.aspx


A discussion about the potential for regulations addressing tiny 
home developments (THD)

-Define what a THD structure is (consistent with the language 
to be adopted under the Florida Building Code, Appendix Q.

-Define what a THD structure is not:
1. THD structures are not a manufactured mobile home, as 
defined in Chapter 6, Definitions of the Escambia County land 
Development Code (LDC)

2. THD structures are not a recreational vehicle, as defined in 
Chapter 6 , Definitions of the LDC.

3. THD structures are not a park trailer, as defined in Chapter 6 
Definitions of the LDC 

2

http://www.escpa.org/Default.aspx


 THDs will abide to the following land use controls:
 It will not be located within an existing platted subdivision

 It will not be located within the boundaries of the adopted Escambia 
County Mid-West Sector Plan  

 It will not be located within the boundaries of Pensacola Beach or 
Perdido Key (resiliency)

 It will not be located within the boundaries of any identified Airport 
Influence Planning District (AIPD) (resiliency)

 It will not be located within a FEMA designated High-Risk Special 
Flood Hazard Area (SFHA) (resiliency)

3

http://www.escpa.org/Default.aspx


Initial discussion identified the following zoning districts 
potential to accommodate consistent development:

High Density Residential district (HDR). Residential uses within the 
HDR district include most forms of single-family, two-family and 
multi-family dwellings

High Density Mixed-use district (HDMU). Residential uses within the 
district include all forms of single-family, two-family and multi-
family dwellings

Commercial district (Com). residential uses are allowed throughout 
the district, but if within the Commercial (C) future land use 
category they are permitted only if part of a predominantly 
commercial development

Heavy Commercial and Light Industrial district (HC/LI). Any 
residential uses outside of the Industrial (I) future land use
Category. 

4

http://www.escpa.org/Default.aspx


Initial discussion identified the following zoning districts potential to 
accommodate consistent development, only if a Conditional Use 
request is approved :

Agricultural district (Agr). Residential uses within the district are 
largely self-sustaining, consistent with rural land use and limited 
infrastructure.

Rural Residential district (RR). The primary intent of the district is to
provide for residential development at greater intensity than the 
Agricultural district on soils least valuable for agricultural production 
but continue to support small-scale farming on more productive 
district lands.

Rural Mixed-use district (RMU). Residential uses are generally limited 
to detached single-family dwellings, consistent with existing rural 
communities and limited infrastructure.

5

http://www.escpa.org/Default.aspx


Conditional Use request is approved :

Sec. 3-2.7 Medium Density Residential district (MDR). 

Residential uses within the MDR district are limited to single-family 
and two-family dwellings. 

6

http://www.escpa.org/Default.aspx


What other jurisdiction have done:

JURISDICTION DATE TYPE Additional Information

Leon County 2/12/2019 Technical Ammendments to 
the Fl Building Code 

Exclude City of Tallahassee; 400 square feet or 
less

City of Rockledge, 
Brevard County

9/23/2015 Land Development Code In pocket neighborhoods under RMU and in 
Planned Unit Development Districts

Monroe County, Fl 12/1/2018 Pilot Program Construction 1 year-display only; multiple builders
City of St. Petersburg, Fl Current Land Development Code If built as a permanent on-site structure, the 

“tiny home” is allowed on vacant land, subject 
to the same zoning requirements as any new 
single-family home, including building 
setbacks, design requirements, and parking 
requirements of the applicable zoning district, 
and is subject to the Florida Building Code.

City of Spur, Tx 7/17/2014 Land Development Code Requires variance in identified areas of the City; 
must be on a foundation; must have a driveway; 
must be connected water/sewer service

7

http://www.escpa.org/Default.aspx


What is next?

Florida Building Code, Appendix Q adoption scheduled for Jan 2021

Staff to receive additional guidance or request for additional 
information from the Planning Board members (to include timeline)

8

http://www.escpa.org/Default.aspx

	Agenda
	Approval of Minutes
	Att1_Draft June 1, 2020 Regular Planning Board Meeting Minutes
	Att2_Monthly Action Follow-Up
	Att3_Six Month Outlook
	PLANNING BOARD MONTHLY SCHEDULE
	SIX MONTH OUTLOOK FOR JULY 2020

	SSA-2020-02
	Att1_Working Case File
	SSA-2020-02
	Location Map
	Zoning Map
	Existing FLU Map
	Proposed FLU Map
	ELU Map
	Aerial Map
	Photos
	Letter of Request
	Application
	Applicant Data and Analysis
	Proof of Ownership
	Boundary Survey
	Applicants Map
	Florida Master File Map and Results
	ECUA Letter
	School Board Letter
	Summary Form

	Att2_Staff Analysis
	Comprehensive Plan
	Summary of Proposed Amendment:

	Att3_Draft Ordinance
	SSA-2020-03
	Att1_Working Case File
	SSA-2020-03
	Location Map
	Zoning Map
	Existing FLU Map
	Proposed FLU Map
	ELU Map
	Aerial Map
	CRA Map
	Photos
	Letter of Request
	Application
	Proof of Ownership
	CRA Comment
	Applicants Data/Analysis
	Applicants Maps
	Letter from Utility Company
	Historical Data
	Boundary Survey
	Summary Form

	Att2_Draft Ordinanace
	Att3_Staff Analysis
	Comprehensive Plan
	Summary of Proposed Amendment:

	A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending Chapter 7, Policy FLU 1.1.1, 2030 Future Land Use Map LSA-2020-02
	Att1_Working Case File
	LSA-2020-02
	Location/Wetlands Map
	Zoning Map
	Existing FLU Map
	Proposed FLU Map
	Aerial Map
	Photos
	Application
	Proof of Ownership
	Warranty Deed
	Boundary Survey
	Applicants Data and Analysis
	Biome Consulting Group Letter
	Master Plan
	ECUA Letter

	Att2_Staff Analysis
	Att3_Draft Ordinance
	A Public Hearing Concerning the Review of an Ordinance Amending Chapter_6, Definitions,_Section 6-0.3 Terms Defined
	Att1_Draft Ordinance
	Recommendation Concerning the Review of the Comprehensive Plan Annual Report 2018_2019
	Att1_Comp Plan Annual report 2018-2019
	RVs Allowed for Living in District 5 where Mobile Homes are Allowed Discussion
	Att1_Draft Ordinance
	Tiny Homes Discussion
	Att1_Powerpoint
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Proposed land use controls
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8


